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MessAGe to tHe MInIsteR

The Hon Liza Harvey MLA 

Minister for Police; Tourism; Road Safety; Women's Interests.

In accordance with section 61(1) of the Financial Management Act 2006 and in fulfilment of obligations imposed on the Authority  

by the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987, we hereby submit for your information and presentation to Parliament the Annual Report  

of the Rottnest Island Authority for the year ended 30 June 2013.

This annual report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.

John Driscoll 

CHAIRMAN

23 September 2013 

Stephen Lauder 

DEpuTy CHAIRMAN

23 September 2013 



Rottnest Island's marine and 
terrestrial reserve comprises of  
1, 859 hectares of land and 3, 800 
hectares of surrounding waters.
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agency
overview

"As a regular visitor to the Island for over 30 
years, Rottnest Island is certainly in my blood 

and I look forward to the challenges ahead."

John Driscoll, Chairman 
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Message from the Chairman

I am delighted to include my first 

contribution as Chairman to the Rottnest 

Island Authority (RIA) Annual Report.

As a regular and passionate visitor to 

the Island for over 30 years, Rottnest 

Island is certainly in my blood, however 

it was not until I became involved with 

the Board that I was able to gain a full 

understanding and appreciation of the 

unique challenges that face this very 

special part of Western Australia.

In 2012-13 Rottnest Island experienced 

increased competition and stagnating 

visitation. As a result of this several 

changes within the RIA have 

commenced. A strategic plan was rolled 

out for the next five years.

In a tough tourism market, we are 

pleased to report that Rottnest Island 

increased visitor numbers.

Our vision is to become a world 

recognised, sustainable, must visit 

tourism destination.

Rottnest Island will grow visitor numbers 

and yield by providing best-in class 

tourism products, experiences and 

service but this cannot be achieved if 

it is at the expense of Rottnest Island’s 

unique heritage and environment.

To achieve our goals for growth and 

conservation, we recognise that we need 

to change.

A review of commercial businesses 

under the management of the RIA has 

been undertaken throughout 2012-13.

The 'Rottnest Island Draft Boating 

Management Strategy' was released for 

public comment in April 2013.

Public feedback on this important aspect 

of Island management was welcomed 

with over 200 submissions received by 

the Authority.

With the renewed focus on Rottnest 

Island’s marketing, product delivery 

and customer service, the years 

ahead will see increased visitation and 

Rottnest Island becoming the must visit 

destination it deserves to be.

As a sign that we are on the right track, 

Rottnest Island was recognised by 

our peers in the tourism industry for 

excellence in marketing. Rottnest Island 

won three gold and one bronze medal in 

the Western Australian tourism awards 

and then went on to win the national 

marketing award at the Qantas Australian 

Tourism Awards. I congratulate all staff 

and Island stakeholders who contributed 

to this award success.

In a change of pace, Rottnest came to 

a complete standstill in December as 

a mark of respect and to acknowledge 

the passing of the Island’s Catholic 

priest, Monsignor Sean O’Shea, after 52 

years of devotion to the Island and its 

community.

In a year of intense learning for me, it has 

also been my absolute pleasure to work 

alongside the Board and staff of the RIA. I 

would like to thank them for their shared 

passion and love of Rottnest Island as 

well as their readiness to continually go 

“above and beyond”.

"  Rottnest Island won three gold 
and one bronze medal in the 
Western Australian Tourism 
Awards and then went on to  
win the national marketing 
award at the Qantas Australian 
Tourism Awards."

John Driscoll 
CHAIRMAN

executive summary
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Message from the Chief Executive Officer

The past 12 months proved to be 

particularly pleasing for the Rottnest 

Island Authority (RIA). 

Visitation satisfaction remained high 

with Rottnest Island having met or 

exceeded the expectations of 97% of 

its visitors. This has been a result of 

our continued investment in improving 

facilities and services.

In a challenging economic environment, 

the RIA experienced a net accounting 

profit of $0.8 million for the year, whilst 

investing $6.8m on works programmes to 

improve visitor experiences.

Following on from the consumer 

research conducted late last year, 

we have reviewed all our operations 

and are making changes to enhance 

visitor satisfaction and ensure financial 

viability on the Island. A General 

Manager – Sales, Marketing and Product 

Development was appointed in  

October 2012. 

This position has a clear directive to 

focus on our financial sustainability 

through driving visitation with the right 

product offering and the revitalisation of 

Rottnest Island.

Four new food and beverage outlets 

opened during the year – Geordie Bay 

Café, Simmo’s Ice Creamery, The Lane 

(coffee shop) and the Visitor Centre Café. 

New tennis courts were constructed at 

Geordie Bay and Kingstown, the Fun Park 

received a makeover and an outdoor 

table tennis table was installed near the 

Dome. The installation of a microwave 

link from the mainland to the Island has 

improved data communication for our 

visitors. During the coming 12 months our 

visitors will see continual improvements 

at Rottnest Island. 

The RIA has commenced improvements 

to its accommodation. The campground 

upgrade commenced with new ablutions, 

landscaping and outdoor cooking 

facilities. The villa refurbishments in 

Geordie Bay started in April and will 

be completed by September 2013. All 

televisions within RIA accommodation 

were replaced with 32” digital 

flat screens. Changes within our 

accommodation booking system saw the 

move to an 18 month booking window 

and the announcement of the removal of 

the ballot. Barbeques were replaced in 

rental accommodation at North Thomson 

and Governors Circle.

To attract new visitors to the Island 

refurbishment to the golf course and 

country club has commenced and is due 

for completion in late 2013, which will 

enhance Rottnest Island’s appeal to local, 

national and international visitors. 

The RIA is ensuring its long term 

sustainability through improvements to 

infrastructure including the replacement 

of a generator and alternator at the 

power station, water tanks, the power 

house, desalination plant controls, bore 

pumps, sewage pumping stations and 

the waste water treatment plant. 

"  In a challenging economic 
environment, the RIA 
experienced a net accounting 
profit of $0.8m for the year, 
whilst investing $6.8m on 
works programmes to improve 
visitor experiences."
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"  Visitation satisfaction remained 
high with Rottnest Island having 
met or exceeded the expectations 
of 97% of its visitors."
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Progress continues to be made towards 

our initiatives as set out in the  

2009- 2014 Rottnest Island Management 

Plan. Given the challenges of the 

past year I am pleased to advise that 

significant progress was made with an 

expenditure of $6.7m.

Our emergency response training and 

protocols on the Island were put to the 

test in June 2013 when two men were 

successfully rescued offshore from 

Geordie Bay after their vessel capsized. 

The RIA Rangers performed the rescue 

quickly, transferring the survivors back 

to shore for medical attention and then 

returned to the scene to retrieve the 

vessel. I would like to acknowledge the 

invaluable work of Island police, nursing 

staff and the RIA Rangers.

The appointment of a Rottnest Island 

Fire and Emergency Coordinator was 

made to strengthen the Island’s fire and 

emergency planning, preparedness, 

response and recovery capability that 

are appropriate for the Island. The RIA 

appreciates the additional fire truck 

made available to it by the Department 

of Fire and Emergency Services.

The RIA Rangers continued to adopt 

a more educational and welcoming 

approach to visitor compliance. In line with 

the RIA’s commitment to improving the 

visitor experience, the Rangers completed 

the following park services projects;

•	 West End Boardwalk; 

•	 Geordie Bay erosion control 

measures; 

•	 access to Henrietta Rocks; 

•	 Little Parakeet Bay access and 

rehabilitation;

•	 the Cathedral Rocks seal viewing 

platform was designed.

Our volunteers do an amazing job in 

assisting us to create better visitor 

experiences. The RIA recently moved 

the Rottnest Island Voluntary Guides into 

a new location on the Island. This move 

was the first stage of working closer 

together to align both organisations, 

streamlining the visitor experience

The RIA is committed to promoting 

awareness, education and action to 

develop respect and create opportunities 

for Aboriginal people. In 2012-13 the 

RIA continued its commitment to 

reconciliation with the launch of its 

second Reconciliation Action Plan. 

While writing this message, I recognised 

the huge commitment from the Board and 

staff in their achievements this year. This 

gives me great confidence as we progress 

towards the future and I appreciate their 

continual efforts and support. 

To finish, it has been my sad duty this 

year to represent the Rottnest Island 

Authority at the inquest into the death 

of Thomas Brasier, a three year old boy 

who died as the result of a pillar collapse 

at one of our holiday units. The immense 

suffering this has caused his family and 

friends can never be lessened. 

What can and has been done, however, 

is everything possible to ensure the 

chain of events that led to this tragedy is 

never allowed to happen again.

Paolo Amaranti 
CHIEF ExECuTIvE OFFICER
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"  To attract new visitors to the 
Island refurbishment to the 
golf course and country club 
has commenced and is due for 
completion later this year."
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Enabling Legislation

The Rottnest Island Authority (the RIA) 

was established under the terms of the 

Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987  

(the Act) and administers the Rottnest 

Island Regulations 1988. 

Under the Act; members of the Rottnest 

Island Authority Board are appointed to 

oversee the management and control of 

Rottnest Island by the Governor.

The Chief Executive Officer administers 

the day-to-day operations of Rottnest 

Island, subject to the control of the 

Authority, and is supported by a core 

permanent staff of 110 and temporary 

staff engaged as required to meet 

seasonal demand. 

Responsible Minister

The Minister responsible for the Rottnest 

Island Authority is the Hon Liza Harvey 

MLA, Minister for Police; Tourism; Road 

Safety; Women's Interests.

Our Vision

World recognised, sustainable – must visit 

tourism destination

Objectives:

•	 Improve visitor experiences

•	 Conservation and improved access 

to cultural heritage

•	 Protection of the unique environment

•	 Professional relationship  

with stakeholders

•	 Financial sustainability.

Rottnest Island  
Authority Members (Board)

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Services

General Manager 
Governance, 
Strategy and 

Support

General Manager 
Project and 

Contract Services

Manager 
Marine and 

Terrestrial Reserve

General Manager 
Sales, Marketing 

and Product 
Development

Organisational Chart

operational structure
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Admistrative Legislation

The Rottnest Island Authority administers 

the Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987.

Other Key Legislation

Key legislation impacting on our 

operations includes;

•	 Financial Management Act 2006

•	 Public Sector Management Act 1994

•	 State Supply Commission Act 1991

Board Members

The Authority’s governing body, the 

Board, is appointed by the Governor on 

the nomination of the Minister for Tourism 

for terms not exceeding three years 

and members may be re-appointed. 

Members are selected according to their 

experience relevant to the Authority’s 

operations. 

Chairman

John Driscoll was 

appointed Chairman 

of the Board in July 

2012. John’s formal 

qualifications include 

a Bachelor Degree 

in Economics and a Master of Business 

Administration. He became Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer of Marketforce 

in 2003 following a 15-year career with 

Marketforce. He commenced as Group 

Media Director in 1989, and reached the 

position of Managing Director in 2002.

John’s standing as one of the State’s 

leading marketers is reflected in his 

commitment to support organisations 

dedicated to improving professionalism 

in our industry. He is Chair to the Senior 

Advisory Panel of Marketing for the 

Curtin Business School, past Chairman of 

the Communications Council of Western 

Australia, Board Member of Trinity 

College and Chairman of Crime Stoppers 

Western Australia.

John has been holidaying at Rottnest for 

a very long time and is an active member 

of Rottnest Island’s boating community. 

He is a past Committee Member of the 

Rottnest Channel Swim Association and 

is a regular competitor in this event.

Deputy Chairman 

Stephen Lauder 

was appointed in 

July 2012. Stephen 

is an experienced 

and passionate 

Western Australian 

based businessman. 

He was the founder and owner of AHS 

Hospitality, Australia’s largest provider 

of outsourced labour services to the 

Australian accommodation hotel industry, 

employing over 4000 staff. 

Previously a state winner of the Ernst 

and Young Entrepreneur of the Year and 

more recently, a regional judge for this 

award event in 2012, Stephen now owns 

and is chairman of a private boutique 

investment company. 

Stephen consults for many private 

and public companies and has been 

a member of the Young Presidents 

Organisation since 2004, undertaking 

many roles including running a 

successful mentoring program. He is also 

a member of the Australian Institute of 

Company Directors. 
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Robert McDonald was 

appointed in July 2011. 

Rob is  the Chairman 

of the Rottnest 

Island Authority 

Finance and Audit 

Committee. Rob’s 

formal qualifications include a Bachelor 

of Business as well as being a CPA and 

MAICD. He has broad experience  in 

finance, human resources, policy 

development and information technology.

Rob is the principal of Tiderock 

Consulting, specialising in management, 

organisational and financial reviews 

for government organisations. Prior to 

commencing his consulting business, 

Rob was Executive Director, WA Police 

and worked in senior management 

with the State Treasury as well as Chief 

Executive Officer of the State Supply 

Commission. 

Rob is also the Chair, Governing Council, 

North Metropolitan Health Service and 

a non-executive Director of the Forest 

Products Commission, The Centre for 

Cerebral Palsy and Community First. 

Suzanne Hunt 

was appointed in 

May 2010. Suzie 

has a Bachelor of 

Applied Science 

and a Bachelor of 

Architecture (Hons). 

She has over 25 years experience in 

architectural design, documentation, 

contract administration and strategic 

management on contemporary and 

heritage developments in all sectors. 

Suzie is the principal of a boutique 

architectural and interior design practice. 

Suzie has been involved with 

architectural conservation and adaptive 

reuse in the refurbishment of listed 

industrial buildings into residential 

apartments. She has worked as the 

Project Architect for the Fremantle Prison 

Conservation and Future Use Projects 

and a Project Leader for the Supreme 

Court Building and Parliament House 

studies in Perth. 

Sally Hollis 

was appointed 

in December 

2010. Sally has 

worked in tourism, 

hospitality and 

event management 

industries in Western Australia and the 

United Kingdom. She was a founding 

director of the Australian Tourism 

Accreditation Association and the 

Executive Officer of Tourism Council 

Western Australia. She is currently 

the National Project Manager of the 

Australian Tourism Accreditation Program 

and Projects Manager with Tourism 

Council WA. 

Sally has worked with the then 

Department of Environment and 

Conservation and the Western 

Australian Indigenous Tourism Operators 

Committee. She is a regular participant in 

the Rottnest Channel Swim.

Dr Peter Hick was 

appointed in August 

2011. He is a retired 

CSIRO Environmental 

Geoscientist, 

who specialised 

in spectral and 

biophysical research for terrestrial 

and aquatic environments. He has 

specialist skills in the understanding of 

the environmental effects of resource 

extraction, mining and agriculture, and 

has written more than 140 publications.  

His PhD was awarded in the field of 

Marine Physics and his recent research 

has concentrated on the statistics of 

localised effects of climate. Peter is a 

yachtsman, keen diver and surfer, and 

enjoys fishing  He has published books 

on sailing and maritime history.
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Member Appointed
Number of applicable 
meetings for 2011-12

Meetings 
attended

Designation

John Driscoll December 
2010

11 11 Chairman appointed by the Governor on the nomination of the Minister under S6(1)(a) of the Act.

Stephen Lauder August 2012 11 10 Deputy Chairman appointed by the Minister under S6(3) of the Act

Suzanne Hunt May 2010 11 10 Member appointed under S6(2)(b) of the Act – a person who has practical knowledge of and experience in the 
preservation of buildings of historic value.

Sally Hollis December 
2010

11 11 Member appointed under S6(2)(a) of the Act – a person who has practical knowledge of and experience in the 
conservation of the environment.

Robert McDonald July 2011 11 11 Member appointed under S6(2)(c) of the Act –  a person who has sound commercial experience.

Peter Hick August 2011 11 9 Member appointed under S6(2)(d) of the Act – a person who is a regular user of the Island for 
recreational purposes.

Term Concluded Nil

Declaration of Interest

The Board has a standing declaration of 

interest process, where Board agenda 

papers are not distributed to those 

members who have declared or perceived 

interest in relation to any matter. Members 

are excluded from participating in board 

business relating to these interests. In 

addition to this process, Board members 

declare other interests from time to time 

as matters arise. 

Directors’ and Officers’  
Liability Insurance 

An insurance premium has been taken 

out to indemnify Board members against 

any liability incurred under sections 13 or 

14 of the Statutory Corporations  

(Liability of Directors) Act 1996. 

Finance and Audit Committee 

The objective of the Finance and Audit 

Committee is to report and, where 

appropriate, make recommendations 

to the Board on financial, audit and 

risk related matters to monitor financial 

management and to ensure risk 

management is effective.

The Committee met on 11 occasions 

during the year. 

The Rottnest Island Business 
Community 

The Rottnest Island Business Community 

(RIBC) Inc is a group of dedicated 

businesses which operate on or around 

the Island. Lead by an Executive of five 

its key strategic objectives are to:

•	 work in conjunction with the RIA to 

enhance the visitor experience

•	 partner with the RIA to increase 

visitor numbers in a sustainable 

manner.
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Performance Management Framework

The Performance Management Framework is structured in accordance with the requirements of the Government’s Outcome-Based Management Framework for public  

sector agencies. 

The RIA is classified as a Public Non-Financial Corporation by the Department of Treasury. This implies that it is required to be self-funding and not rely on State Budget funding 

for its commercial operating expenses. The RIA is therefore required to act in a commercial manner to fulfil its functions. 

Rottnest Island Authority’s Outcome-Based Management Framework 

Government Goal: Social and Environmental Responsibility 

Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the long-term benefit of the State. 

Rottnest Island Authority’s Desired Outcome Key performance Indicators Services provided to the Community

Rottnest Island visitors enjoy recreational and holiday 
experiences in healthy natural and cultural environments.

Effectiveness 

•	 Visitor satisfaction with the Rottnest Island experience

•	 Health of Island’s natural environment 

•	 Health of Island’s cultural heritage. 

1. Recreational and holiday services.

Efficiency 

•	 Average cost of recreational and holiday services provided per 
visitor

•	 Average cost of natural environment and cultural heritage 
management per reserve hectare.

2. Natural environment and cultural  
heritage management.

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies

The RIA does not share any key service-related responsibilities with other agencies. However, it does work in partnership with other government providers servicing Rottnest 

Island, including the Western Australia Police, Department of Health, Department of Fire and Emergency Services, Department of Education and the Department of Transport.

The Rottnest Island Authority also contributed to cross-agency initiatives such as managing future staffing needs, promoting and managing equity and diversity, promoting ethical 

conduct and participating in corporate services reform. 
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Rottnest Island Management Plan 
2009-2014 progressed with $6.7 million 
expended on planned initiatives.
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Agency 

In September 2012, the RIA commenced the rollout 
of the new Information Communication Technology 
(ICT) strategy, which will result in the creation of a 

“One Rottnest” business environment.
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Acknowledging 
the family support 

of our staff

Report on operations Governance, strategy and support

Major Achievements 2012/13

* Rottnest Island recognised on national tourism stage – winning the national 

tourism marketing award at the 2012 Qantas Australian Tourism Awards

* Rottnest Island won the State tourism award for sustainability

* The Rottnest Island Authority experienced a net accounting gain in a 

challenging economic environment, whilst maintaining a financial ratio of 1:16

* Rottnest Island met or exceeded the expectations of 97% of its visitors.

Highlights 2012/13

* a net accounting gain was achieved through stringent cost controls in a 

challenging financial environment

* Rottnest Island Management Plan 2009-2014 progressed with  

$6.7 million expended on planned initiatives 

* more than 90% of all permanent employees have undertaken  

cross- cultural awareness training 

* in September 2012, the RIA commenced the rollout of the new ICT strategy,  

that will result in the creation of a “One Rottnest” business environment 

* commissioning of a new high-speed microwave data link between the 

mainland and the Island

* provision of Wi-Fi and Internet services to the Island businesses and visitors.



20          Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013

agency performance

Rottnest Island Management plan 2009–14 

The Rottnest Island Management Plan (RIMP) 2009-14 was developed with input from the community, stakeholders and staff, and with a theme of environmental,  

social and financial sustainability. 

A summary of the progress made in relation to each initiative during 2012-13 is provided below.

Summary progress Report on the RIMp 2009-14 to June 2013

Initiative Status or progress 

2012-13 
Budget 

$

2012-13 
Expenditure 

$

1 Review the Rottnest Island 
Authority Act 1987 

An extensive review of the Act has commenced. Proposed Act amendments have been conceptually identified and will 
be considered by Government. 

0 0

2 Tourism and Recreation 
Strategy 

As a result of fluctuating visitor numbers for the past several years, the RIA undertook a comprehensive market research 
project in 2012 to survey visitors and non-visitors to the Island. The results of this survey have been incorporated into 
various planning processes such as the Tourism and Recreation Strategy, as well as used to guide various marketing 
campaigns seeking to increase visitation and visitor spend on the Island. 

20,000 0

3 Twenty-year vision for 
Rottnest Island

Various research projects have been conducted during the past several years including Rottnest Island values, 
sustainability, climate change, economic modelling, and extensive market research for current and potential visitors. 
Based on this information, a 20-year vision has been identified and included in the RIA’s current Strategic Plan and draft 
Rottnest Island Management Plan for the period 2014-19, the latter being subject to public comment during late 2013.

0 0

4 Sustainability accreditation Rottnest Island has received and maintained its Bronze EarthCheck accreditation for two years based on benchmarking 
and monitoring of its resource use and sustainability management activities. The RIA is progressing towards Silver 
Certification which requires implementation of an Environmental Management System and material improvements being 
achieved in regard to several resource usage rates. 

35,000 35,000

5 Sustainable visitor research Completed 2010-11 0 0

6
Development planning 
controls

Completed 2010-11 0 0

7 Address external 
environmental and 
economic threats 

A study was completed using a ‘geographical information system’ (GIS) to identify the structure of the Island’s coastal 
areas for the purpose of future coastal development planning. 

A baseline benchmarking of environmental conditions for the whole Island was completed under the RIA’s Conservation 
Action Planning process. 

An area of recent focus has been the coastal erosion site at South Thomson.

35,000 35,000
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Initiative Status or progress 

2012-13 
Budget 

$

2012-13 
Expenditure 

$

8 Aboriginal reconciliation The RIA’s second Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) was developed. Various successful activities included:

•	 A booklet on the ‘Aboriginal History of Wadjemup’ was produced for public sale;

•	 Utilisation of the name Wadjemup to identify Rottnest Island with signage where appropriate;

•	 Interpretive signage installed at various locations; 

•	 Another successful Wadjemup Cup football carnival conducted by the Clontarf Foundation;

•	 Over 50 local Aboriginal women participated in three community weaving workshops on the Island; and

•	 Employment of an Aboriginal trainee. 

100,000 120,000

9 Maintain quality of RIA 
accommodation

Various refurbishments and upgrades to RIA accommodation were carried out through the year, including:

•	 Refurbishment of the Caroline Thomson cabins;

•	 Improvements to bungalows

•	 New barbeques in Central and North Thomson villas, and Governor’s Circle units; 

•	 Repainting and repair of floors in South Thomson villas;

•	 Installation of digital TVs, antennas and data cabling in all masonry units

•	 Villa 909 was upgraded as a trial for future more extensive improvement programs; and 

•	 In addition, the annual scheduled maintenance to the value of $500,000 was implemented. 

2,000,000 1,700,000

10 Provide a range of visitor 
accommodation

Negotiations with various proponents, both local and international, for accommodation developments on the Island  
were conducted. 

The campground facilities and landscaping upgrade commenced in June and is due for completion by  
October 2013. 

0 210,000

11 Upgrade Kingstown 
Barracks 

An internal business review of the operations and commercial viability of the Kingstown Barracks facility was conducted. 
This may result in seeking expressions of interest from the market for alternative uses of the facility. 

0 0

12 Review visitor 
accommodation 
management options

Research into alternative approaches to managing and delivering the RIA’s accommodation was conducted. This initiative is 
being considered in conjunction with Initiatives 1 and 3, which includes a review of the RIA business model. 

0 0
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Initiative Status or progress 

2012-13 
Budget 

$

2012-13 
Expenditure 

$

13 Expand recreational 
activities

A range of improvements were implemented including:

•	 Golf course upgrade mostly completed to the budget value of $1.4 million; 

•	 Tennis court upgrades to the value of $300,000;

•	 Weatherproof table tennis facility, valued at $15,000, in the main settlement for free use by visitors; and 

•	 Lighting installed to the Fun Park to enable night time mini golf, valued at $45,000. 

0 2,160,000

14 Improve visitor facilities In partnership with the Rottnest Foundation, Rottnest Society and Winnit Club, the RIA obtained a $140,000 Coastwest grant 
for the ‘Coastal Protection and Rehabilitation at Henrietta Rocks’. The project outcomes included a new formalised access 
structure to the beach and interpretive signage to enhance the visitors’ appreciation for the unique coastal environment. 

0 140,000

15 Marine facilities - Boating 
Management Strategy (BMS)

A draft BMS has been released for public comment with over 200 submissions received. A final BMS will be published 
before the end of 2013. 

In relation to the proposed commercial marina development, a preliminary concept design has been prepared. Two more 
supporting research studies are being conducted comprising boating visitor market research and a survey of the sea 
grass habitat in the proposed marina area. 

40,000 640,000

16 Review responsibility for 
utilities, major infrastructure 
and non-commercial 
services 

Proposed amendments to the RIA’s legislation, if approved, will be the catalyst for changing its obligations to provide 
utility services on the Island. Pending the conclusion of this action, concept designs and economic modelling of a future 
utilities strategy will be implemented. 

Negotiations conducted with various Government agencies regarding the transfer of some community services. 

0 100,000

17 Terrestrial Management 
Strategy (TMS)

A draft Terrestrial Management Strategy has been prepared. The two primary enabling components of this Strategy, the 
implementation of an Environmental Management System and the Conservation Action Planning process, are in progress. 

40,000 40,000

18 Implement the Marine 
Management Strategy (MMS)

Various projects and improvements have been implemented, including a Marine Compliance Plan. 40,000 40,000

19 Education and interpretation 
for environmental 
management

Educational programs developed and implemented for school, community and corporate groups. Community education 
material, exhibitions and interpretive signage produced to reflect key messages for various campaigns including 
Sustainability, Protecting Island Wildlife, Waste Management and Island Facilities. New interpretative signage at Little 
Parakeet, as part of a node for the planned Rottnest Walk Trail. 

40,000 20,000

20 Rottnest Island Research 
Strategy

There were 10 RIA research projects sponsored during 2012-13. As of June 2013 there were 20 active research projects 
on Rottnest Island, including research on quokka demographics research and groundwater. 

50,000 23,000
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Initiative Status or progress 

2012-13 
Budget 

$

2012-13 
Expenditure 

$

21 Cultural heritage 
conservation

General repairs and maintenance to heritage buildings was implemented to the value of $235,000, including the 
ongoing program maintenance of the Kingstown Barracks, and stone repair and lime-washing to heritage buildings in  
the Settlement. 

Several improvements to the Island’s heritage assets were achieved. An interpretive orchard was planted behind Lomas 
Cottage. The Old Mill and Hay Store (now Rottnest Museum) was re-roofed. The Oral History collection of recordings 
were digitally enhanced and converted into a searchable computer database. A library of film footage for podcasts and 
promotional material was created. 

Significant progress was made on the specialised conservation works in relation to the nationally significant World War 
II military installations at Oliver Hill and Bickley Point. A commitment of $1.26 million has been made concerning these 
works which are scheduled to open to the public in September 2013. 

235,000 235,000

22 Education and interpretation 
products

Familiarisation for school teachers with facilitation of an Island bus tour and induction to school specific facilities and 
education services. Delivery of Open House and After Dark heritage program in July and August 2012, and June 2013. 
A guide to Aboriginal history was developed and printed. Fifty ‘geocaching’ sites around the Island were developed and 
launched in conjunction with Nature Play WA activities on the Island.

85,000 44,000

23 Improve customer service An ongoing online survey of all accommodated guests was introduced. The quarterly general visitor satisfaction survey 
continued with increasing satisfaction levels, including ‘value for money’ being reported. 

0 25,000

24 Focus on safety and 
security

Significant actions were implemented to address visitor safety and security during 2012-13, including: 

•	 Engagement of fulltime FESA officer to manage fire and emergency services on the Island;

•	 Infringement notices introduced for anti-social behaviour e.g. bicycle theft;

•	 Increased security presence on the Island during ‘Juvies’ period in early December 2012;

•	 Focus on strengthening operational arrangements with the Rottnest Island Police. 

30,000 50,000

25 Support volunteers Increasing and improving relationships through quarterly volunteer network meetings and providing opportunities 
that enable volunteer and community groups to engage in activities on the Island that include tourism, heritage and 
environmental outcomes. Continued operational support for Rottnest Island Volunteer Guides including a refurbished 
new headquarters and support for their Archives and Oral History initiative.

30,000 45,000

Totals 2,780,000 6,662,000
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Highlights 2012/13

$6.8m was spent on works  

programs including; 

* refurbishment of the golf course and 

country club

* stabilisation and construction  

of Oliver Hill gun emplacements and 

Bickley Battery buildings

* new retail food and coffee outlets 

opened at the Visitor Centre and 

Geordie Bay 

* Henrietta Rocks steps constructed

* construction of new tennis courts at 

Geordie Bay and Kingstown 

* improvements to infrastructure 

including water tanks, the power 

house, desalination plant controls, 

bore pumps, sewage pumping 

stations and the waste water 

treatment plant.

Project & Contract Services

Item Quantity Supplied Cost to the RIA Rottnest Island Prices Mainland Prices (Metro)

Power 4,921,879 kilowatts $1,781,840 $0.42/kW/hr $0.25/kW/hr  
plus supply charge

Potable water 110,400 kilolitres $199,465 $2.97/kL $1.19/kL min. to  
$2.40/kL max.

Waste management 988 tonnes of  
waste generated

$561,740.74

Waste water 63,948kL $345,011

Gas 313,833 litres $2.06/m3

Fuel (transport to the Island)

Diesel Diesel (l) – 1,153,783 $1,652,590.91 $1.86 $1.39

Unleaded Unleaded (l) – 115,767 $163,510.83 $1.81 $1.29

Premium unleaded Premium (l) – 61,957 $91,972.57 $1.90 $1.40

Infrastructure, Utilities & Services 

The RIA provides all utilities on Rottnest Island, including power, potable water, waste water, waste disposal, and gas. Additionally the 

RIA manages and maintains the Island’s infrastructure, which includes 50km of bituminised roads, $10m of buildings, six jetties and a 

CASA approved airport. Some statistics associated with this are shown below.

Summary of utility services and infrastructure management provided by the RIA during 2012/13
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Works & Contract Services

During 2012-13, the RIA continued to 

manage the provision of key facilities, 

operations and utility services on the 

Island. The RIA delivered $6.8m in works 

projects and maintained the Island’s 

buildings and infrastructure to enhance 

the visitor experience.

Facilities & Utilities Management

The RIA manages the provision of 

utility services on the Island and 

maintenance of all built infrastructure 

through contracted service providers. 

These contractors (Programmed Facility 

Management) are specifically engaged 

to maintain the Island’s buildings and 

equipment and to operate utilities, public 

area cleaning, waste management and 

general transport services including 

luggage delivery at a total cost of $8.7m 

in 2012-13.

Power

All power requirements for the Island are 

generated on-site using a combination 

of diesel generators and a wind turbine. 

The RIA generates, distributes and retails 

power under licence from the Economic 

Regulation Authority.

The total power generated during the 

year was 4.9m kilowatts, of which 1.2m 

kilowatts (26%) was generated by the 

Island’s wind turbine, and the balance 

supplied through diesel generation.  

The wind turbine generated the 

equivalent of 342,000 litres of diesel fuel, 

saving the RIA an estimated $490,000. 

Capital works undertaken during  

2012-13 included;

•	 installation	of	an	automated	fire	

detection	and	suppression	system

•	 a	rebuild	of	generator	seven

•	 improvements	to	control	systems

•	 installation	of	a	new	self	bunded	

bulk	fuel	storage	facility.	

Water Services

The RIA provides potable water and 

treats waste water on the Island 

operating under a Department of 

Water licence under the office of the 

Environmental Protection Authority. 

There were 110,000 kilolitres of potable 

water produced during the year.  

The desalination plant produced 80% 

of this amount and the remainder was 

sourced from groundwater bores. 

Potable water is stored in a series  

of tanks connected to the water 

distribution network.

All waste water is biologically treated 

at the Rottnest Island Waste Water 

Treatment Plant using a cyclic activated 

sludge process. A small percentage is 

currently recycled for irrigation purposes 

on the cricket oval. There were 64,000 

kilolitres of waste water treated during 

the year.

1.2m
kilowatts of power 
generated by the Island's 
wind turbine, equal to 
342, 000 litres of diesel 
fuel, saving the RIA an 
estimated $490, 000.



26          Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013

agency performance

Liquid Petroleum Gas

A mix of reticulated and bottled liquid petroleum gas (LPG) is used to provide gas on 

the Island including the RIA’s accommodation facilities (e.g. hot water systems and 

cooking facilities), as well as a range of appliances used by visitors and residents, such 

as barbecues. Most commercial businesses operating on the Island also utilise LPG for 

their operations. During the year 313,833 litres of gas were used on the Island.

Waste Management

Approximately 988 tonnes of waste is generated on the Island each year of which 

29% is recycled. Waste suitable for recycling is separated prior to transportation and 

includes plastics, glass, paper, cardboard, oils, tyres, metals and biosolids. The RIA’s 

waste management strategy has resulted in reduced usage of the Island landfill site 

and the majority of waste produced being transported to the mainland.

Communication to our visitors to gain support and buy-in is an important part of the 

sustainability on the Island.

Licensing

To comply with Government regulations the RIA is required to maintain the following 

licenses and conditions with regard to its utilities and major infrastructure.

Function Renewal Period

Electrical Supply License (Integrated Regional License) 30 years

Electrical Services (Power Reticulation) 30 years

Electrical Contractors License 1 year

Communications Two-Way Radio Repeater 1 year

Communications Maritime Coast 1 year

Communications Maritime Ship 1 year

Water Operating License (Potable, Drainage and Sewerage) 20 years

Waste Water Treatment Plant License 5 years

Ground Water 10 years

Waste Management 5 years

Ground Well License N/A
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New interpretive signage has been installed around the Island
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Highlights 2012/13

* Rottnest Island wins state tourism 

sustainability award

* secondment of a Fire and 

Emergency Services Officer from the 

Department of Fire and Emergency 

Services

* revegetated 3.44 hectares with a 

total of 18,900 native plants 

* development of an Environmental  

Management System (EMS)

* significant improvements to the 

nursery to enable propagation of 

endemic seedlings.

Natural Environment 

Rottnest Island’s marine and terrestrial 

reserve comprises of 1,859 hectares of 

land and 3,800 hectares of surrounding 

waters. The RIA manages the biodiversity 

conservation, research and monitoring 

programmes, environmental protection 

and ecological restoration including 

coastal dune management. 

Terrestrial Conservation 

The RIA continued to manage the 

terrestrial area of the reserve by:

•	 undertaking a baseline survey of 

floristic species and microbialite 

communities 

•	 assessing quokka demographics 

and population status

•	 re-vegetating a total of 0.87 

hectares of coastal dune with a total 

of 8,823 plants and 2.57 hectares of 

woodland planting 10,148 trees 

•	 undertaking seed collection, seed 

treatment and plant propagation 

with the help of volunteers

•	 continuing shorebird and migratory 

bird surveys.

Emergency Services 

Emergency preparedness and 

development of response plans for 

the Island are coordinated through 

the Rottnest Island Local Emergency 

Management Committee. The Committee 

membership includes:

•	 Rottnest Island Authority 

•	 Western Australia Police

•	 Department of Fire and  

Emergency Services

•	 Department for Child Protection

•	 Department of Heath

•	 Major Facilities maintenance 

contractor - Programmed Facility 

Management (PFM).

This committee met six times in 2012/13. 

In 2013 the RIA seconded an individual 

from the Department of Fire and 

Emergency Services (DFES) to work with 

the RIA and the Rottnest Island Volunteer 

Fire and Rescue Service. 

The appointment of a Rottnest Island 

Fire and Emergency Officer was made to 

ensure that the RIA’s fire and emergency 

planning, preparedness, response and 

recovery capability are appropriate for 

the requirements of the Island.  

The Department of Fire and Emergency 

Services has made an additional fire 

truck available to the RIA. 

As a result of this arrangement,  

the RIA has prepared bushfire 

management response mapping which 

outlines emergency access points, 

strategic fire trails and has a map grid 

reference system. 

The RIA has developed a working 

relationship with Rescue 65 helicopter 

regarding emergency response for 

marine incidents, RIA Rangers have 

undertaken a live exercise in vessel 

transfer direct to rescue helicopter. 

Similar training of RIA staff and island 

emergency agencies will be undertaken 

in the near future.

Marine & terrestrial Reserve 
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Marine Conservation 

The RIA continued to implement its 

Marine Management Strategy.  

Key activities from this strategy for 

2012/13 include:

•	 continuation of the Reef Life  

Survey – a community-based 

volunteer program

•	 continuation of the Marine Debris 

Survey conducted by Earthwatch 

volunteers

•	 maintenance and management  

of all marine-based sanctuary  

zone markers

•	 updated gazettal areas for no 

boating areas and speed zones 

within Rottnest Island waters  

with Department of Transport 

(marine safety)

•	 various educational and interpretation 

initiatives implemented including 

attendance at the Seaweek Expo in 

February 2013

•	 joint patrols with Department  

of Fisheries

•	 Water Police diver training exercise 

•	 investigative geotechnical survey of 

the dune stability in South Thomson 

Bay associated with the erosion 

of the coastal dune in the area of 

accommodation units.

Research programs

In 2012/13 the RIA provided grants 

under the RIM Research Strategy. The 

RIA contributes $23,000 towards the 

following reseacrh programs:

•	 Department of Environment and 

Conservation and University of 

Western Australia to conduct a 

quokka demographics and  

genetics survey 

•	 Murdoch University to conduct  

a behavioural study with regards  

to organic waste produced on  

the Island 

•	 Australian Nuclear Science  

and Technology Organisation to 

assist in the development of a 

sustainable yield for Wadjemup 

aquifer (the Island’s primary 

groundwater supply).

The RIA also provides in-kind support 

to research projects that assist in 

the management of the Island’s 

environment.  Curtin University continues 

to evaluate the Island’s freshwater seeps 

and their relationship with rainfall and 

coastal influences.

park Services

The RIA continued to adopt a more 

educational approach to obtaining 

visitor compliance with its regulations 

during the year, resulting in fewer 

infringements being issued. The Rottnest 

Island Rangers continue to focus their 

efforts on ‘park management’ rather than 

enforcement activities.

The following works were completed 

during the year to improve visitor 

experiences:

•	 West End Boardwalk 

•	 Geordie Bay erosion control 

measures 

•	 Henrietta Rocks beach access and 

rehabilitation

•	 Little Parakeet Bay access and 

rehabilitation

•	 Cathedral Rocks seals viewing 

platform was designed. 
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Highlights 2012/13

•	 Rottnest Island wins state and 

national tourism marketing  

award and was recognised as  

the major tourism attraction in 

Western Australia

•	 Rottnest Island achieved recognition 

as a cultural heritage tourism 

destination in the WA Tourism 

Awards

•	 Heritage public programs were 

highly commended in the WA State 

Heritage Awards

•	 National Heritage Week was 

celebrated on the Island in  

April 2013 with the support of a  

grant from the Australian 

Commonwealth Government

•	 Nationally significant World War II 

military installations were stabilised 

and conserved with more than 

$1,000,000 spent on specialised 

conservation and remedial works 

•	 The RIA entered its second phase of 

reconciliation with the launch of its 

Reconciliation Action Plan 2012-15

* $1.5 million was allocated for 

the holiday accommodation 

refurbishment program 

* The Boating Management Strategy 

was released in April 2013 for  

public comment and 218 comments 

were received 

* Mooring colours have been moved 

to be in line with the State  

co-ordinated system

* Self serve fuel pumps were  

installed for the boating community 

on the fuel jetty. 

visitation

Rottnest Island is experiencing increased 

competition and stagnating visitation. 

The most significant impact is on Rottnest 

Island’s day trip numbers.

During the year more than 531,000 

visits were made to Rottnest Island. This 

comprised 294,000 visitors by ferry, 

46,000 trips by staff and volunteers, an 

estimated 185,000 visitors by private 

boat and more than 6,000 visitors by 

aircraft. All these visitor types contribute 

to the economy of the Island. 

Of those visitors who come by ferry, most 

(65%) come to experience Rottnest for 

the day, but many (35%) stay in overnight 

accommodation on the Island. 

It is pleasing to note that our overnight 

visitation is 3% up on last year, due to the 

implementation of proactive strategies.

Traditionally, in excess of 80% of Rottnest 

Island visitors are West Australians. 

There has been an increase in Western 

Australian’s choosing to travel overseas in 

the past decade, contributing factors are;

•	 a rapidly expanding local economy 

•	 most recently the high value of the 

Australian dollar; and

•	 the expansion of low cost carriers, 

particularly to South East Asia. 

The declining intrastate market has not 

been compensated by an increase in 

international travellers due to the poor 

exchange rates.

As a result of increased competition 

within the Western Australia tourism 

industry, a General Manager – Sales, 

Marketing & Product Development was 

appointed in October 2012. The focus of 

this new position is to;

•	 increase visitor numbers  

and satisfaction;

•	 increase yield per visitor; and

•	 attract and re-engage 

lapsed visitors. 

During winter the RIA continued with the 

“extended stay” option allowing guests 

to book accommodation for periods of 

between eight to 16 weeks. In (2012-13) 

20 bookings were taken for “extended 

stay” (nine more than last year).

sales, Marketing and Product Development



Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013 31

During the year more than 530, 000  
visits were made to Rottnest Island.  
This comprised 294, 000 visitors by ferry, 
46, 000 trips by staff and volunteers, an 
estimated 185, 000 visitors by private boat 
and more than 6, 000 visitors by aircraft.
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Marketing 

In 2012/13 marketing efforts of the RIA 

were recognised nationally at the Qantas 

Australian Tourism Awards. 

Rottnest Island hosted 644 participants 

on media and industry familiarisations.

The RIA appointed an external provider 

to manage its social media presence. 

Rottnest Island’s Facebook page now has 

60,000 ‘likes’. 

The RIA focussed on improving the ease 

of navigation through it’s website  

www.rottnestisland.com 

The RIA website remains a comprehensive 

tool for marketing and gathering 

information to plan a day trip or  

extended stay.

In 2012-13 the RIA website saw a 25% 

increase in unique visitors (757,889) with 

over 2.5 million page views.

An increased participation in consumer 

shows has proved successful, resulting 

in the RIA increasing our interaction with 

potential visitors. 

This year we attended the;

•	 Mandurah Boat Show

•	 Hillarys Boat Show 

•	 Holiday and Retirement Expo. 

A renewed focus on developing better 

media relationships has resulted in an 

uplift of positive public relations for the 

Island. In 2012-13, 146 newspaper articles 

were published, 83% positive. A Today 

Tonight segment ran in April 2013 putting 

Rottnest in a very positive light.

2012-13 saw the introduction of packaging 

of offers and bundling pricing to simplify 

the visitor transaction. This has proved 

successful and will be extended when the 

new ICT strategy rolls out in 2013-14. 

We updated our technology to  

improve visitor experiences with the 

provision of free Public Wi-Fi to the Mall 

and surrounds. 

A new integrated marketing campaign 

was launched in late June utilising 

outdoor, print, social media, online and 

radio. The focus of this campaign is 

two fold - a call to action with specific 

price point to drive accommodation and 

Rottnest After Dark numbers over the 

winter period and an aspirational piece 

“Have you been to Rottnest Island lately?” 

to engage with lapsed and non visitors.

We have targeted direct marketing to 

focus on the specific product needs of 

the audience. Initial numbers are very 

pleasing. Packages sold this June have 

exceeded last June by over 40%.

A 'Request for Quote' was released 

to the market in June 2013 

for a Rottnest 

Island brand 

refresh. The 

RIA recognises 

the importance 

of consistent 

branding to 

resonate with 

potential visitors.

60,000+
'likes' on Facebook
facebook.com/Rottnest
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Accommodation

Accommodation is the RIA’s most 

important commercial business and 

comprises of 291 self contained units, 

a 164 bed dormitory style facility at 

Kingstown, 50 bed hostel and a camping 

ground offering 23 sites. 

For many years Rottnest Island booking 

procedures have not been consistent with 

industry standards and have not kept up 

with changing visitor expectations. This 

was confirmed in research findings in 

2012. As a result of the research we have 

made the following improvements:

•	 All televisions within RIA 

accommodation were replaced with 

32” flat screen digital televisions 

with all free to air stations and high 

quality reception

•	 Back courtyard walls of the popular 

beach view villas in South Thomson 

were lowered to create a sense of 

space and community

•	 Booking rules were relaxed to allow 

holiday reservations to be made up 

to 18 months in advance

•	 The removal of the ballot  

was announced

•	 The on-line booking system was 

streamlined to enable a simplified 

booking process. 46% of visitors use 

this service

•	 Commencement of the upgrade 

of the 40 site campground which 

includes a camp kitchen and  

toilet block

•	 Heritage houses received new 

furniture, fixtures and fittings.

•	 The refurbishment of beach front 

villa commenced - upgrades include:

•	 ambient lighting

•	 new contemporary dining  

and lounge suites

•	 painting, tiling and bathroom 

upgrades

•	 rugs, soft furnishings, artwork 

and mirrors

•	 queen size bedroom suite to 

master bedroom

•	 doonas provided on all beds; 

•	 café style outdoor lounge  

and furniture.

The RIA has continued to promote the 

“extended stay” option over winter 

allowing guests to book accommodation 

for periods of between 8 and 16 weeks. 

Bookings increased by 66% in 2012/13 

over 2011/12. 

Tours & Transport 

70,000 passengers per annum travel on 

the RIA bus and train service on the island.

The RIA recognises that the management 

of the Tours and Transport business 

is a specialised area and as such is 

exploring the introduction of an external 

experienced company to provide  

this service. 

A Request for Proposal (RFP) was 

released to the market in late June with 

a brief to revitalising this service and 

enhancing the visitor experience.

Bike & Recreational Hire 

67,000 bicycle rentals, 7000 mask & 

snorkel sets and 700 recreational items 

were supplied to our visitors in 2012/13 

by Bike & Hire. 

Additional hire items and services are 

now provided to meet customer needs, 

including a small range of chandlery 

goods as a service to the boating 

community, this has resulted in an 

increase in spend per visitor of 2%.

Bike & Hire supported numerous events 

on the Island by supplying bikes to event 

participants and organisers at reduced 

rates. This reduces vehicle movements at 

peak times for public safety and to maintain 

the vehicle free ethos of the Island. 

The Rottnest Family Fun Park is managed 

by Bike & Hire. This year the facility was 

refreshed with a $50,000 makeover 

including new lawn, lighting and painting. 
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Corporate Meetings & Conferences 

The Rottnest Island Country Club and Conference Centre hosted 41 days of functions and 

conferencing. This contributed significantly to the Island’s overall economy, generating 

an estimated $250,000 of gross income across both RIA and private business.

The Country Club and Conference Centre and surrounding Golf Course closed in 

March 2013 for major redevelopment. This facility is scheduled to be reopened under 

private management in late 2013. 

Events 

The 2012/13 calendar comprised of 28 events, which attracted more than 30,000 visitors 

to the Island. A focus on weddings resulted in 29 weddings being held on the Island. 

Events

Rottnest Classic Golf Tournament Mandurah Offshore Fishing and Sailing Club

The Rottnest Cup Golf Tournament East Fremantle Yacht Club Race

ABC Outside Broadcast Rottnest Bun Run

Rottofest Beneteau Cup

Brooks Marathon UWCT World Cycling Time Trial and Road Race

BIAWA Boating Convey Festival of Sail

Wadjemup Cup Nature Play GEO Caching

Leavers Wharfie Surf Off

Rottnest Swim Thru ANZAC Day

Leighton to Lighthouse Rottnest Heritage Week

Doctor Ocean Paddler Playgroup WA Wadjemup Play Day

94.5 Outside Broadcast RAC Members Weekend

Rottnest Channel Swim RAP launch

Blue Marlin Fishing Classic HIF Pro Am Series Surfing Competition

The RIA is a major sponsor of the HBF Rottnest Channel Swim which is the largest 

event on the Island and busiest day of the year, attracting in excess of 20,000 visitors 

and participants.

Community Engagement 

Volunteers

Rottnest Island has a number of volunteer groups including;

•	 The Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association (RVGA)

•	 Rottnest Foundation

•	 Winnit Club

•	 Scouts Australia

•	 Rottnest Society

•	 Conservation Volunteers Australia and 

•	 various school and corporate groups.

More than 1,500 volunteers are currently associated with the Island providing in excess 

of 30,000 volunteering hours.

Volunteers participate in projects such as seawall painting, fence installation, tree 

planting, weed removal, seed collection, rubbish cleanups and general maintenance. 

Other volunteering activities include operating tours and assisting with historical 

archives and school holiday activities. 
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The Rottnest Voluntary Guides 

Association Inc (RVGA) is a key partner 

to the RIA and assist us in promoting an 

increased awareness and appreciation 

of the natural environment and historical 

significance of Rottnest Island.

These guides conduct daily tours 

covering the history of the settlement, 

the quokka and World War II guns and 

tunnels. A greater variety of activities 

and tours are conducted during school 

holidays and by special request. 

The RVGA volunteers moved into their 

new home on the Island. This move was 

the first stage of working closer together 

to create a better visitor experience. 

Education

More than 5,000 students and 

teachers from 110 schools participated 

in curriculum-linked activities with an 

estimated $500,000 contributed to the 

Rottnest Island economy. 

An estimated 5,500 children and 

adults have also participated in school 

holiday activity programs run by the 

RIA in collaboration with the Rottnest 

Island Volunteer Guides, Recfishwest, 

Department of Fisheries and Tangaroa 

Blue Ocean Care Society. 

Key initiatives for the school education 

program included: 

•	 re-introduction of water  

based activities

•	 development of self guided  

activity kits 

•	 re-aligning curriculum-linked 

activities within the school 

education program to meet National 

Curriculum outcomes

•	 partnering with Nature Play WA to 

conduct a large scale geocaching 

event open to all WA schools.

Marine Facilities

To better understand the needs of the 

Western Australian boating community  

a draft Boating Management Strategy 

was released in April 2013. Input from  

the public and stakeholders will be 

collated and evaluated to inform the RIA 

of future needs. 

The following key outcomes were 

achieved in 2012/13:

•	 potable water refill facilities installed 

on the Fuel and Geordie Bay jetties

•	 upgrade to the existing refuelling 

facilities to allow for self dispensing 

via EFTPOS and credit card

•	 solar lighting installed on the 

Geordie Bay jetty

•	 uniformity of mooring buoy colours 

in line with the State 

•	 development in consultation with 

the Department of Transport for the 

installation of night time navigation 

aids into Rocky Bay

•	 modifications to the 5 knot speed 

limit in Thomson Bay to allow free 

flow of vessel movement

•	 in excess of $600,000 was invested 

in a marina feasibility study which 

commenced during 2012/13. 

Cultural Heritage Collection Care

During 2012/13 the RIA accessioned more 

than 250 artefacts and images into the 

Rottnest Museum collection database. 

The RIA also manages the Rottnest Island 

art collection with ongoing condition 

assessments and improvements to 

accessibility and archival storage.  

A significant collection of photographic 

negatives of Rottnest Island taken in 

1935 have been recorded and are of 

particular importance in documenting 

and confirming the history of the Island. 
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Building Conservation &  
Heritage Interpretation

Cultural heritage management includes 

care of 144 heritage places and more 

than 2000 historic artefacts as well as an 

oral and archival history collection. 

In preparation for the RIA’s strategic 

objective of achieving world heritage 

listing the following activities took place;

•	 planned maintenance program 

ongoing for all State registered 

heritage sites 

•	 conservation works of the nationally 

significant WWII structures at Oliver 

Hill and Bickley Batteries and 

developed a series of podcasts  

and videos focusing on the people 

and activities on Rottnest Island 

during WWII

•	 developed interpretive content using 

the military theme of Rottnest being 

“made-ready” for active service at 

the beginning of World War II 

•	 restoration of the Vlamingh 

Memorial 

•	 authentic re-roofing of the Old Mill 

and Haystore (Rottnest Museum)

•	 continuing repairs to the sash 

windows and joinery at Kingstown 

Barracks and ongoing masonry 

repairs to the limestone buildings

•	 creation of an orchard behind Lomas 

Cottage to interpret the historical 

use of the land 

•	 refurbishment of the interpretive 

media at Oliver Hill and Bickley 

Batteries to support guided and 

walking tours of these historic sites

•	 released a smartphone application 

on Every trail – “Colonial Buildings of 

Thomson Bay Settlement”

•	 unique heritage-themed 

photographic prints were  

installed into the heritage cottages 

in the Settlement.

Aboriginal Reconciliation 

The RIA is committed to promoting 

awareness, education and action with 

all stakeholders to develop respect and 

create opportunities for Aboriginal people.  

During 2012/13 the RIA has successfully 

delivered on a number of RAP initiatives 

and actions which included: 

•	 continuing cross-cultural 

awareness training for RIA staff, 

Island businesses, volunteer and 

contractors 

•	 continued Aboriginal educational 

activities through the school 

educational program, professional 

development courses and also 

through events such as National 

Heritage Week 

•	 in November 2012 over 100 

teenagers from the Clontarf 

Foundation participated in the 

Wadjemup Cup, an annual 

Aboriginal football event which 

attracts a large spectator group 

•	 South West Aboriginal Land and Sea 

Council enabled the RIA to host a site 

visit for traditional owners to Wadjemup.  

The site visit involved Elders 

connecting with Country and was an 

important step towards healing of the 

Island and Whadjuk people 

•	 Hosted several weaving workshops 

for Aboriginal women from the 

local community. The artwork was 

displayed for both Reconciliation 

Week and NAIDOC Week 

celebrations 

•	 Representatives of the Indigenous 

Education Consultative Body from 

every Australian State and Territory 

came to the Island and shared 

in its rich cultural and historic 

heritage and shared the educational 

programs delivered on  

the Island

•	 Each year a Noongar elder attends 

our ANZAC day service.

The RIA entered its second phase of 

reconciliation with the launch of its 

Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) 2012-

15. The RIA CEO launched the RAP in 

May 2013 to the Island with Aboriginal 

community Elders.
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The RIA's accommodation saw a modest increase in occupancy levels during the 

2012/13 financial year in contrast to the performance of accommodation sector overall 

across the State which reported a slight decrease. During the peak summer period, 

accommodation continued to show full occupancy and in excess of 3,170 applications 

were received for the summer ballot.

The RIA achieved a $0.8 million profit in the 2012-13 financial year despite a continued 

challenging economic environment. 

Section 34 of the RIA's Act requires it to achieve ‘break-even’ results. 

As the RIA presently uses its operational profits to cross subsidise the non-commercial 

services, it remains dependent on modest levels of government appropriations to fulfil 

its role under the Act.

Despite an adverse economic environment in which most of the RIA's operating costs 

have increased beyond CPI levels, the RIA's management has been monitoring and 

controlling its cost base very diligently. Due to its prudent cost management the 

Authority has been able to achieve better than forecasted results. However, achieving 

long-term financial sustainability will remain one of the RIA's key challenges that 

have been addressed through a number of initiatives, including the planning of clear 

financial strategies within its Strategic Plan 2013/18. 

The RIA has also invested $6.8 million on works programs to improve visitor 

experiences and to mitigate safety and compliance matters.

The net cash flow for the 2012-13 year was an outflow of ($2.3 million) mainly impacted 

by a significant increase in capital expenditure of $3.0 million due to the commitment 

of major capital works, including the Authority’s obligation to safety and compliance 

related works in line with its RIMP. 

Consistent with the RIMP accommodation strategy, the Authority has and will continue 

to set aside additional funds for the refurbishment of its accommodation assets.

Target 2012-13 Result 2012-13

Total cost of services - $35.1 million $35.1 million

Profit/(Loss) - $0.1M $0.8 million

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held ($4.3M) ($2.3 million)

The following table of financial ratios highlight a variety of areas where the Authority’s 

financial performance has improved over recent years:

Financial Ratio 2013 2012 2011 2010

Operating revenue per visitor $101.84 $98.72 $93.40 $94.14

Profit margin percentage 
(Profit before depreciation and 
extraordinary items as a % of revenue)

14.2% 10.8% 15.8% 12%

Cash ratio 
(Coverage of current liabilities with cash)

1.22 1.35 1.35 1.03

Financial summary
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The RIA achieved a $0.8 million profit in 
the 2012-13 financial year  
despite a continued challenging 
economic environment. 
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The number of tourist visits to Rottnest Island fluctuates within a band of 450,000 to 

550,000 annually. This is caused by a range of factors including variational shifts in the 

local economy, weather patterns, currency exchange rates and overseas events. 

The number of visitors over a 10 year average has remained static. The Board 

initiatives within the Strategic Plan developed in 2012-13 address this and include 

strategies for growth. The RIA is developing an aggressive marketing and promotional 

strategy to increase visitation and sales revenue, which will include enhanced and new 

tourism products. 

The fluctuations in the tourism industry during any year makes predicting income 

and budgeting appropriately challenging. Growth is critical to the financial stability of 

Rottnest Island. 

The following strategies are currently being adopted by the RIA to address its  

financial sustainability:

•	 restructuring operations to focus on sales, marketing and product development, 

as well as improvements to Island infrastructure  

•	 upgrading the accommodation, utilities and recreational facilities

•	 The provision of a reliable supply of potable water and the preservation of the 

shallow aquifer are critical to the economic and environmental sustainability of 

Rottnest Island 

•	 The upgrade to the desalination plant is therefore a critical project. However the 

preservation of the water supply is part of a complex series of interconnected 

issues relating to water demand, supply integrity, demand reduction strategies, 

environmental monitoring and compliance, and waste water disposal

•	 The RIA has engaged the professional assistance of the Water Corporation to 

assist with integrating these overlapping, and occasionally competing issues.

Legislative Review
During 2012-13, the RIA commenced a review of its governing legislation, the Rottnest 

Island Authority Act 1987 (the Act). The Act has not been significantly amended since 

its proclamation in 1987, and an update to the Act to reflect current community and 

industry expectations is overdue.

Visitor trends Financial sustainability
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ceRtIFIcAtIon oF FInAncIAL stAteMents

The accompanying financial statements of the Rottnest Island Authority have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the 

Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2013 and the financial position as at 30 June 2013.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements 

misleading or inaccurate.

John Driscoll

CHAIRMAN

19 September 2013

Robert McDonald

CHAIRMAN 

Finance & Audit Committee

19 September 2013

Othmar Beerli

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

19 September 2013

For the year ended 30 June 2013
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stAteMent oF coMPReHensIVe IncoMe
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2013 2012

$000 $000

INCOME

Revenue

Sales 6 297 257 

Provision of services 7 29,416 28,488 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 8 2 6

Interest revenue 9 1,050 1,066 

Other revenue 304 622 

Total Income 31,069 30,439

Expenses

Cost of sales 6 89 149 

Employee benefits expense 11 10,967 10,558

Supplies and services 12 18,113 17,903 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 13 4,264 4,728 

Finance costs 14 263 248 

Accommodation expenses 15 397 394 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 10 106 86 

Other expenses 16 885 996 

TOTAL ExpENSES 35,084 35,062

Profit/(Loss) before grants and subsidies  
from State Government (4,015) (4,623)

Grants and subsidies from State Government 17 4,745 3,469 

Services received free of charge 18 85 94 

pROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE pERIOD 815 (1,060)

Note 2013 2012

$000 $000

OTHER COMpREHENSIvE INCOME

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 30 8,184 (6,228)

Total other comprehensive income 8,184 (6,228)

TOTAL COMpREHENSIvE INCOME FOR THE pERIOD 8,999 (7,288)

See also note 41 ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses 
by Service’

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be 
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013        47

stAteMent oF FInAncIAL PosItIon
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2013 2012

$000 $000

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 31 1,460 5,781

Inventories 19 120 167

Receivables 20 2,122 1,375

Other financial assets 21 14,000 5,500

Total Current Assets 17,702 12,823

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 22 216,625 206,315

Infrastructure 23 24,044 23,908

Intangible assets 24 900 1,146

Other financial assets 21 4,000 10,500

Total Non-Current Assets 245,569 241,676

TOTAL ASSETS 263,271 254,692

Note 2013 2012

$000 $000

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 26 4,347 5,312 

Borrowings 27 146 153 

Provisions 28 2,275 1,886 

Other current liabilities 27 9,135 8,737 

Total Current Liabilities 15,903 16,088

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 28 138  284 

Provisions 28 801 790 

Other non-current liabilities 29 833 933 

Total Non-Current liabilities 1,772 2,007 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,456 18,095

NET ASSETS 245,596 236,597

EQuITy

Contributed equity 30 50,032 50,032 

Reserves 30 189,798 181,614

Retained earnings 30 5,766 4,951

TOTAL EQuITy 245,596 236,597

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the  
accompanying notes.
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stAteMent oF cHAnGes In equIty
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note
Contributed 

equity
Reserves

Retained 
earnings

Total Equity

$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2011 31 50,032 187,842 5,818 243,691 

Correction of prior period error - - 193 193

Restated balance as at July 2011 50,032 187,842 6,011 243,885

Surplus / (deficit) - - (1,060) (1,060) 

Other comprehensive income - (6,228) - (6,228)

Total comprehensive income for the period - (6,228) (1,060) (7,288) 

Balance at 30 June 2012 50,032 181,614 4,951 236,597

 

Balance at 1 July 2012 50,032 181,614 4,951 236,597

Surplus / (deficit) - - 815 815

Other comprehensive income - 8,184 - 8,184

Total comprehensive income for the period - 8,184 815 8,999

Balance at 30 June 2013 50,032 189,798 5,766 245,596

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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stAteMent oF cAsH FLows
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2013 2012

$000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM INvESTING ACTIvITIES

Receipts

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets

Proceeds from sale of investments

payments

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets - - 

Purchase of non-current physical assets (6,386) (3,357) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (6,386) (3,357) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIvITIES

Receipts

Proceeds from Borrowings - -

payments

Repayment of Borrowings (153) (144)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (153) (144)

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOvERNMENT

Grants and subsidies 4,821 3,437

Net cash provided by State Government 4,821 3,437

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,321) 1,629

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  
of the period 21,781 20,152

CASH AND CASH EQuIvALENTS AT THE END  
OF THE pERIOD 31 19,460 21,781

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note 2013 2012

$000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM OpERATING ACTIvITIES

Receipts

Sale of goods and services 297 257

Provision of services 29,924 27,640

Commonwealth grants and contributions 2 6

Interest received 1,064 893

GST receipts on sales 2,964 2,830

GST receipts from taxation authority - -

Other receipts 249 619

payments

Cost of Sales (42) (164) 

Employee benefits (10,635) (10,277) 

Supplies and services (20,343) (16,649) 

Finance costs (263) (248) 

GST payments on purchases (2,729) (2,112) 

GST payments to taxation authority (236) (719) 

Other payments (855) (383) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 31 (603) 1,693 
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For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General statement

  The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 

financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, 

the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 

pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. 

Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, 

disclosure, format and wording. 

  The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose 

legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take 

precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of 

Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 

  Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial 

effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting 

financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation

  The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 

using the historical cost convention, except for land, buildings, infrastructure and 

artworks which have been measured at fair value. 

  The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have 

been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

    The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are 

rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

 

Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards

General

 The Rottnest Island Authority’s (“the Authority”) financial statements for the year 

ended 30 June 2013 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 

Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and 

Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).

 The Authority has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian  

Accounting Standards from their operative dates. 

Early adoption of standards

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 

specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 

Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting 

Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for 

the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2013.



Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013        51
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(e) Income

 Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received 

or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

 Sale of goods

  Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when 

the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can 

be measured reliably.

 Provision of Services

 Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

 Interest

 Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

 Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions

  Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority obtains control over the 

assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.

  Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are 

recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when 

a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not 

donated.

  Gains 

  Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These 

include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations 

of non-current assets.

 Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ 

discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Authority’s 

accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in 

the financial statements.

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made 

concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of 

the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(c) Reporting entity

 The reporting entity comprises the Rottnest Island Authority.

(d) Contributed equity

  AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 

Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than 

as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by 

the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to 

transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital 

appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 

Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have 

been credited directly to Contributed equity.

  The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a 

restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by 

owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
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(f ) Property, plant, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure

 Capitalisation/Expensing of assets

  Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more 

are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) 

over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 

costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar 

items which are significant in total).

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are initially recognised at cost. 

  For items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure acquired at no cost 

or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement

  Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the 

measurement of land, buildings and infrastructure and historical cost for all other 

property, plant and equipment. Land, buildings and infrastructure are carried at 

fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings and infrastructure only) and 

accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment 

are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

  Fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  

This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is 

restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost 

of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, ie. 

the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined 

on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the 

accumulated depreciation are restated proportionally.

  Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian 

Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure 

that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at 

the end of the reporting period. 

  Fair value of infrastructure has been determined by reference to the depreciated 

replacement cost (existing use basis) as the assets are specialised and no market-

based evidence of value is available. Land under infrastructure is included in land 

reported under note 23 ‘Property, plant, equipment and vehicles. Independent 

valuations are obtained every 3 to 5 years for infrastructure.

  When infrastructure is revalued, the accumulated depreciation is restated 

proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that 

the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

  The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing 

whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated 

useful life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence 

does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use 

assets. Refer to note 23 ‘Property, plant, equipment and vehicles’ and note 24 

‘Infrastructure’ for further information on revaluations.

 De-recognition

  Upon disposal or de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and 

infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 

revaluation surplus.

 Asset revaluation surplus

  The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on 

the revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 23 ‘Property, plant, 

equipment and vehicles’.
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 Depreciation

  All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated 

over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their 

future economic benefits. 

  Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are 

reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

 Buildings 20 to 40 years

 Computers & Electronic Equipment 3 to 5 years

 Furniture 3 to 5 years

 Plant & Vehicles 3 to 7 years

 Leasehold Improvements 10 to 15 years

 Infrastructure 20 to 50 years

 Infrastructure – Gas Filing Stations 1 to 3 years

Works of art controlled by the Authority are classified as property, plant and equipment. 

These are anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in 

any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and consequently no 

depreciation has been recognised.

Land is not depreciated.

(g) Intangible assets

 Capitalisation/Expensing of assets

  Acquisitions for intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated 

intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising  

the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below 

these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

  Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or 

for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

  The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset  

to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated  

impairment losses.

  Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the 

period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) 

on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Authority have a 

finite useful life and zero residual value.

 The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

 Software (a) 3 to 5 years

 Website Costs 3 to 5 years

 (a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware

Computer software

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, 

plant and equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is 

treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the 

year of acquisition.

Website costs

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate 

to the acquisition or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and 

amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase 

of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are 

expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website, to the extent that they 

represent probable future economic benefits that can be reliably measured,  

are capitalised.
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  Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair 

value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is 

determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at 

risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at 

cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(i) Leases

  Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised, at the 

commencement of the lease term, as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the 

fair value of the leased item or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 

payments, determined at the inception of the lease. The assets are disclosed as 

plant, equipment and vehicles under lease, and are depreciated over the period 

during which the Authority is expected to benefit from their use. Minimum lease 

payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the 

outstanding lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease.

  Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this 

represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

( j) Financial instruments

  In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has three categories of 

financial instrument:

•	 Receivables; 

•	 Term deposits; and

•	 Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost.

(h) Impairment of assets

  Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested for 

any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there 

is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the 

recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss 

is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable 

amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously 

revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as 

a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Authority is a 

not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the 

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 

depreciated replacement cost.

  The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 

depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or 

where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets 

is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 

reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic 

benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

  Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet 

available for use are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period 

irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.

   The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair 

value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be 

derived from the asset. 
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(m) Inventories

  Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are 

assigned by the weighted average cost method.

  Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer 

required, in which case they are measured at net realisable value.

(n) Receivables

  Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for 

any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is 

reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible 

are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible 

amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the 

Authority will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent 

to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 

(o) Payables

  Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes 

obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. 

The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 

30 days. 

(p) Borrowings

  All loans payable are initially recognised at fair value, being the net proceeds 

received. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate method. 

 Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

•	 Financial Assets

•	 Cash and cash equivalents

•	 Receivables

•	 Term deposits

•	 Financial Liabilities

•	 Payables; 

•	 Finance Lease Liabilities.

  Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value 

which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent 

measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

  The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost 

or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent 

measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

  For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent assets 

comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three 

months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which 

are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(l) Accrued salaries

  Accrued salaries (see note 26 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff 

but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a 

fortnight of the financial year end. The Authority considers the carrying amount of 

accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.
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 Long service leave

  The liability for long service leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months 

after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the 

undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

  Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after 

the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the present 

value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the 

remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

  When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected 

future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 

superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures 

and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to 

maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

  Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as 

the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 

for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and 

conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 

because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 

liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

 Sick leave

  Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is probable that sick leave paid in 

the future will be greater than the entitlement that will accrue in the future.

  Past history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is 

less than the entitlement accrued. 

(q)    Provisions

  Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where 

there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 

when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and 

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 

reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

 provisions – employee benefits

  All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ 

services up to the end of the reporting period.

  Annual leave 

  The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after 

the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted 

amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

  Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of 

the reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate 

expected to apply at the time of settlement.

  When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected 

future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 

superannuation contributions as well as the experience of employee departures 

and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to 

maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

  The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority 

does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 

12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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  Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not 

members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory 

members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees 

commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB 

Super Scheme (GESBS). Both of these schemes are accumulation schemes. From 

30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees 

became able to choose their preferred superannuation fund. The Authority makes 

concurrent contributions to GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the 

Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 

1992. These contributions extinguish the liability for superannuation charges in 

respect of the WSS and GESBS Schemes.

  The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred 

to the GSS are defined benefit schemes. These benefits are wholly unfunded and 

the liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period. 

The liabilities under these schemes have been calculated separately for each 

scheme annually by Mercers Human Resource Consulting using the projected unit 

credit method.

  The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market 

yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms 

to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

  The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation 

charge is paid by the Authority to the GESB, are defined contribution schemes. 

The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the 

WSS, and the GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer 

contributions to the GESB.

  This is expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that 

existing accumulated entitlements will be used by employees and no liability for 

unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an 

expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for this leave 

as it is taken.

 Purchased leave

  The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who 

have entered into an agreement to self-fund up to additional four weeks leave 

per calendar year. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for 

employees and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when 

liabilities are settled. The liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave.

  Time in lieu

  The flexible working hours provisions of the Authority’s enterprise bargaining 

agreement introduced the concept of annualised hours. At the end of the 

settlement period, when actual hours worked exceed the average aggregate 

ordinary hours, the employee will be paid for the excess hours, or the employee 

will take time in lieu at a mutually agreed time.

  Superannuation

  The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers public 

sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with 

legislative requirements.

  Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension 

scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation 

Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members 

since 1995.
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(s)  Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost

  Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be 

reliably measured are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets and/

or the fair value of those services that the Authority would otherwise pay for. A 

corresponding expense is recognised for services received. Receipts of assets 

are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

(t)  Comparative figures

  Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with 

the figures presented in the current financial year.

(u)  Segment information

  Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of 

the Authority as disclosed in note 2 and AASB 8 Operating Segments. Segment 

revenues and expenses are allocated on the basis of direct attribution and 

reasonable estimates of usage.

  Segment information has been disclosed by service. See note 40 ‘Schedule of 

Income and Expenses by service’.

  The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-

of-government reporting. However, from an agency perspective, apart from the 

transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119.

provisions – other

Employment On-Costs

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 

benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the 

employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included 

as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Authority’s ‘Employee 

benefits expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’. 

(r) Superannuation expense

  The superannuation expense of the defined benefit plans is made up of the 

following elements:

•	 Current service cost;

•	 Interest cost (unwinding of the discount);

•	 Actuarial gains and losses; and

•	 Past service cost.

  Actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plans are recognised 

immediately as income or expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

  The superannuation expense of the defined contribution plans is recognised as 

and when the contributions fall due.

 [See also note 2(q) ‘Provisions – Employee Benefits’ under Superannuation]
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 

specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 

Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any of the 

following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the 

Authority. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Standards from their 

application date:

Operative 
for reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of 
changes to accounting treatments.

The Authority has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for 
measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair 
value measurements. There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013

Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying  
accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements 

about the application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the 

amounts recognised in the financial statements. The Authority evaluates these 

judgements regularly.

Note 4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical 

experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Long Service Leave

Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service 

leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee 

retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and 

assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

Note 5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

The authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 that impacted on the Authority.

AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of 
Items of Other Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 
132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049]

This Standard requires to group items presented in other 
comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are potentially 
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments
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Operative 
for reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 119 Employee Benefits

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), 

1 Jan 2013

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards

This Standard establishes a differential financial 
reporting framework consisting of two tiers of reporting 
requirements for preparing general purpose financial 
statements. There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 
8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 
127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 
and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052]

This Standard makes amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations to introduce 
reduced disclosure requirements for certain types of 
entities. There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

Operative 
for reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 
108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 
1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.

The Authority has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2015

AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 
118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 
1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair 
value guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards 
and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in 
September 2011. There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013



Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013        61

notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Operative 
for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 
1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result 
of issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. There is limited 
financial impact.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements

This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements for 
AASB 119 (September 2011). There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 2012-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair 
Value Measurement - Reduced Disclosure Requirements 
[AASB 3, 7, 13, 140 & 141]

This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure 
requirements for additional and amended disclosures 
arising from AASB 13 and the consequential amendments 
implemented through AASB 2011-8. There is no financial 
impact.

1 Jul 2013

Operative 
for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 
to include information that will enable users of an entity’s 
financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential 
effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off 
associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets 
and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial 
position. There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
[AASB 132]

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to 
address inconsistencies identified in applying some of 
the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of 
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and 
that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement. There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2014

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from Annual Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 
132 & 134 and Int 2]

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 
consequence of the annual improvements process. There 
is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013
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Operative 
for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Transition Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 
8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 
134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049, & 2011-7 and Int 12]

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 10 and related 
Standards to revise the transition guidance relevant to the 
initial application of those Standards, and to clarify the 
circumstances in which adjustments to an entity’s previous 
accounting for its involvement with other entities are 
required and the timing of such adjustments.

The Standard was issued in December 2012. The Authority 
has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 2012-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Other Amendments 
[AASB 1, 2, 8, 10, 107, 128, 133, 134 & 2011-4]

This Standard makes various editorial corrections to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements (Tier 2). These corrections ensure that the 
Standards reflect decisions of the AASB regarding the 
Tier 2 requirements.

This Standard also extends the relief from consolidation 
and the equity method (in the new Consolidation and 
Joint Arrangements Standards) to entities complying with 
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013

Operative 
for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning  
on/after

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition 
Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date 
of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015. 
Further amendments are also made to consequential 
amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply 
from 1 January 2015 and to consequential amendments 
arising out of the Standards that will still apply from 
1 January 2013. There is no financial impact.

1 Jan 2013

AASB 2012-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 7, 12, 101 & 127]

This Standard adds to or amends the Australian 
Accounting Standards to provide further information 
regarding the differential reporting framework and the 
two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general 
financial statement. There is no financial impact.

1 Jul 2013
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Note 8. Commonwealth grants and contribution

2013 2012

$000 $000

Department of EDU, Employment and Workplace Relations 2 6

2 6

Note 9. Interest revenue

2013 2012

$000 $000

Interest revenue 1,050 1,066

1,050 1,066

Interest revenue is sourced from cash and cash equivalents invested in interest  
bearing accounts.

Note 6. Trading profit

2013 2012

$000 $000

Sales 297 257 

Cost of Sales:

Opening Inventory (32) (30) 

Purchases (87) (151) 

(119) (181) 

Closing Inventory 30 32 

Cost of Goods Sold (89) (149) 

Trading profit 208 108 

Note 7. provision of services

2013 2012

$000 $000

Accommodation charges 14,829 14,427 

Facilities and tours 3,908 3,813 

Admission fees 5,244 4,951

Lease and licence income 3,526 3,318 

Utility charges 1,406 1,307 

Housing rentals 503 672 

29,416 28,488
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Note 11. Employee benefits expense

2013 2012

$000 $000

Wages and salaries (a) 10,017 9,651

Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 854 762 

Superannuation - defined benefit plans (see note 28) 96 145 

10,967 10,558 

 (a)  Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component,  

leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component.

 (b)  Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid).

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax are included at 

note 16 ‘Other Expenses’. 

Employment on-costs liability is included at note 28 ‘Provisions’.

Note 12. Supplies and services

2013 2012

$000 $000

Contractors 13,510 13,850

Administration expense 1,547 1,204 

Other Staffing Costs 748 741 

Repairs and maintenance 1,256 1,113 

Vehicle leasing 94 100 

IT system development 6 107 

Marketing expenses 647 450 

Other supplies & services costs 305 338 

18,113 17,903 

Note 10. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
2013 2012

$000 $000

proceeds from disposal of non-current assets

Plant, vehicles and furniture - -

Cost of disposal of non-current assets

Plant, vehicles and furniture (106) (86)

Net gain/(loss) (106) (86)



Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013        65

notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 15. Accommodation expenses

2013 2012

$000 $000

Lease rentals 270 294

Cleaning 67 50

Other accommodation expenses 60 50

397 394

Note 16. Other expenses

2013 2012

$000 $000

Furniture, fittings and equipment maintenance 117 138 

Doubtful debts expense 30 20 

Employment on-costs (a) 564 622

Research and development 29 73 

Other – Write-down of assets 54 54 

Audit fees 885 996

 (a)  Includes workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax employment on-costs. The on-costs 

liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 

28 ‘Provisions’. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee 

benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

Note 13. Depreciation and amortisation expense

2013 2012

$000 $000

Depreciation

Buildings 2,150 2,313 

Computers and electronic equipment 72 42 

Furniture 253 225 

Plant and vehicles 549 622 

Leasehold improvements 24 25 

Infrastructure 951 1,214 

Total depreciation 3,999 4,441 

Amortisation

Intangible assets 265 287

Total amortisation 265 287

Total depreciation and amortisation 4,264 4,728

Note 14. Finance costs

2013 2012

$000 $000

Finance lease charges 37 31

Interest expense - 20

Fees 226 197

Finance costs expensed 263 248
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Note 18. Services received free of charge

2013 2012

$000 $000

State Government

State Solicitors Office 85 94

Total services received free of charge 85 94

Note 19. Inventories

2013 2012

$000 $000

Current

Inventories held for resale

Visitors centre stock 25 25

Bike hire stock 5 7

30 32 

Inventories not held for resale

Materials 8 8

Fuels 82 127

90 135

Total Current 120 167

Note 17. Grants and subsidies from State Government

2013 2012

$000 $000

State Government Operating Grant 4,731 3,268

Office of Crime Prevention - 22

Western Australian Planning Commission 14 127

Department of Transport - 50

Other - 2

4,745 3,469

State Government Operating Grant

The State Government Operating Grant represents the contribution made under the 
Department of Treasury and Finance - Administered Transactions - Grants, Subsidies and 
Transfer Payments, Item 15 - Rottnest Island Authority.
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Note 21. Other financial assets

2013 2012

$000 $000

Current

At cost:

Term deposits 14,000 5,500

Total current 14,000 5,500

Non current

At cost:

Term deposits 4,000 10,500

Total non-current 4,000 10,500

Note 20. Receivables

2013 2012

$000 $000

Current

Receivables 599 707

GST receivable 436 235

Interest receivable 223 236

Other receivables 152 165

Prepayments 734 30

Accrued Revenue 98 92

2,242 1465

Allowance for impairment of receivables (120) (90)

Total current 2,122 1,375 

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for  
impairment of receivables

Balance at the start of period 90 939

Doubtful debts expense 30 20

Amounts written off during the period - (869)

Balance at the end of period 120 90

The Authority does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security  
for receivables.
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2013 2012

$000 $000

Leased plant and vehicles

At cost 755 755

Accumulated Depreciation (598) (410)

157 345

Leasehold Improvements 

At cost 313 313

Accumulated depreciation (180) (156)

133 157

Works of art

At fair value (ii) 15 38

15 38

Work in progress

At cost 4,621 994

4,621 994

216,625 206,315

Land and Buildings were re-valued as at 1 March 2013 by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services).The fair value of all land and buildings has been 
determined by applying the non market value and depreciated replacement cost method. 
Refer note 2(f) ‘Property, Plant, Equipment and Infrastructure’.

Note 22. property, plant and equipment

2013 2012

$000 $000

Land 

At fair value (i) 128,777 127,000

128,777 127,000

Buildings

At fair value (i) 80,966 97,234

Accumulated depreciation (628) (21,209)

80,338 76,025

Computers and electronic equipment 

At cost 1,002 895

Accumulated depreciation (828) (850)

174 45

Furniture

At cost 3,373 2,579

Accumulated depreciation (2,181) (1,928)

1,192 651

plant and vehicles (excl leased vehicles)

At cost 4,048 3,595

Accumulated depreciation (2,830) (2,535)

1,218 1,060
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set in the table below.

Land Buildings 

Computers 
and 

electronic 
equipment Furniture 

plant and 
vehicles 

Leasehold 
improvements 

Works  
of art 

Work in 
progress Total 

2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000

Carrying amount at start of period 127,000 75,832 45 651 1,405 157 38 994 206,122

Additions - 362 201 794 519 - - 7,154 8,837

Transfers - (15) - - - - - (3,527) (3,542)

Other disposals - (83) - - - - (23) - (106)

Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - - -

Revaluation increments 1,777 6,392 - - - - - - 8,169

Depreciation - (2,150) (72) (253) (549) (24) - - (3,048)

Carrying amount at end of period 128,777 80,338 174 1,192 1,375 133 15 4,621 216,625

Land Buildings 

Computers 
and 

electronic 
equipment Furniture 

plant and 
vehicles 

Leasehold 
improvements 

Works  
of art 

Work in 
progress Total 

2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000

Carrying amount at start of period 126,700 81,834 85 288 1,485 182 26 73 210,673

Additions - 298 3 588 532 - - 997 2,418

Transfers - - - - - - - (76) (76)

Other disposals - (32) (1) - 10 - - - (21)

Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - - -

Revaluation increments 300 (3,763) - - - - 12 - (3,451)

Depreciation - (2,312) (42) (225) (622) (25) - - (3,226)

Carrying amount at end of period 127,000 76,025 45 651 1,405 157 38 994 206,315
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Note 24. Intangible assets

2013 2012

$000 $000

Right to Receive the Rottnest Dome Building 778 778

Computer software at cost 1,586 1,567

Accumulated amortisation (1,464) (1,199)

900 1,146

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at start of period 1,146 1,336

Additions 19 100

Disposals - (3)

Amortisation expense (265) (287)

Carrying amount at end of period 900 1,146

Note 25. Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to Property, plant, equipment and vehicles, 
Infrastructure or Intangible assets at 30 June 2013. 

The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during 
the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period other than the right to receive the 
Rottnest Dome building, there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2013 have either been classified as non-current assets held 
for sale or written off. 

Note 23. Infrastructure

2013 2012

$000 $000

At fair value 31,004 37,767 

Accumulated Depreciation (6,960) (13,859) 

24,044 23,908 

The revaluation of utility infrastructure was conducted in October 2012 and was 
performed in accordance with an independent valuation by Australian Valuation Partners 
Pty Ltd. The effective date of the valuation was 31 October 2012. 

The revaluation of remaining infrastructure was conducted in July 2012 and was 
performed in accordance with an independent valuation by Australian Valuation Partners 
Pty Ltd. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2012.

Fair value for both revaluations was determined on the basis of depreciated  
replacement cost.

2013 2012

$000 $000

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at start of period 23,908 27,044 

Additions 1,072 925 

Revaluation increments 15 (2,784) 

Disposals - (63) 

Depreciation expense (951) (1,214) 

Carrying amount at end of period 24,044 23,908
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Note 28. provisions

2013 2012

$000 $000

Current

Employee benefits provision

Annual leave (a) 986 773

Long service leave (b) 879 719

Time in lieu 30 30

Superannuation (d) 182 92

Leave purchase 24 13

2,101 1,627 

Other provisions

Employment on-costs (c) 91 189

Sinking fund provision 4 9

Long Service Leave on-cost provision 79 61

174 259

2,275 1,886

Non-current

Employee benefits provision

Long service leave (b) 412 380

Super provision – long term 43 34

GESB Superannuation liability long term 309 344

764 758 

Other provisions

Employment on-costs (c) 37 32

37 32

801 790

Note 26. payables

2013 2012

$000 $000

Trade payables 4,054 4,899 

Accrued expenses 76 129 

Accrued salaries 217 284 

4,347 5,312 

Note 27. Borrowings

2013 2012

$000 $000

Current

Finance lease liabilities (secured) (a) 146 153

Total current 146 153

Non-current

Finance lease liabilities (secured) (a) 138 284

Total non-current 138 284

 (a)  Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the 

event of default.

2013 2012

$000 $000

Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of non-current assets pledged as 
security are:

Buses 156 345

156 345
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(d) Defined benefit superannuation plans

pension Scheme

pre-transfer 
benefit - Gold State 

Superannuation 
Scheme

2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 $000 $000 $000

The amounts recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
are as follows:

Current service cost - - - -

Interest cost (unwinding of the discount) 9 14 2 3

Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised 15 50 (9) 21

Total included in Employee  
benefits expense 
(see note 11 ‘Employee benefits expense’) 24 64 (7) 24

The amounts recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Position are as follows:

Present value of unfunded obligations 299 312 39 59

Liability in the statement of financial 
position 299 312 39 59

Note 28. provisions contd.

(a) Annual leave liabilities

Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows:

2013 2012

$000 $000

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 451 411

More than 12 months after the end of the  
reporting period 535 362

986 773

(b) Long service leave liabilities

Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows:

2013 2012

$000 $000

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 293 235

More than 12 months after the end of the  
reporting period 998 790

1,291 1,025

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities

The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of 
employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the 
present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the 
unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 16 ‘Other Expenses’.
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Historic summary 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Pension Scheme:

Present value of unfunded 
obligation 299 312 284 296 309

Fair value of plan assets - - - - -

Deficit 299 312 284 296 309

Pre-transfer Benefit -  
Gold State Superannuation 
Scheme:

Present value of unfunded 
obligation 39 59 50 57 52

Fair value of plan assets - - - - -

Deficit 39 59 50 57 52

Experience adjustments 
arising on plan liabilities:

Pension scheme 12 12 5 5 15

Pre-transfer Benefit - Gold 
State Scheme (3) 6 (1) 3 4

Employer funding arrangements for the defined benefit plans

The amounts recorded for the Gold State Superannuation Scheme relate to the 
scheme as a whole (ie. The pre-transfer benefit component plus the concurrently 
funded benefit component).

Employer contributions of $37,000 are expected to be paid to the Pension Scheme 
in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Reconciliation of the unfunded liability recognised in the statement of financial position is 
as follows:

2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 $000 $000 $000

Liability at start of period 312 284 59 50

Current service cost - - - -

Interest cost (unwinding of the discount) 9 14 2 3

Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised 15 50 (9) 21

Benefits paid (37) (36) (13) (15)

Liability at end of period 299 312 39 59

Reconciliation of the fair value of plan 
assets is as follows:

Fair value of plan assets at start of year - - - -

Employer contributions 37 36 13 15

Benefits paid (37) (36) (13) (15)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year - - - -

The principal actuarial assumptions 
used (expressed as weighted averages) 
were as follows:

2013 2012

Discount rate 3.38% 2.84%

Future salary increases 5% 5.50%
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Note 30. Equity

Contributed Equity 2013 2012

$000 $000

Balance at start of period 50,032 50,032

Total contributions by owners 50,032 50,032

Reserves 2013 2012

$000 $000

Asset revaluation surplus

Balance at the start of period 181,614 187,842

Net revaluation increments/(decrements)

Plant & Vehicles - -

Infrastructure 15 (2,784)

Land 1,777 300

Buildings 6,392 (3,763)

Artworks - 19

Balance at end of period 189,798 181,614

Retained Earnings 2013 2012

$000 $000

Balance at start of period 4,951 5,818

Correction of prior period end 815 (1,193)

Balance at end of period 5,766 4,951

Total equity at end of period 245,596 236,597

Note 28. provisions contd.

Movements in other provisions 2013 2012

$000 $000

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial  
year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Employment on-cost provision

Carrying amount at start of period 282 272

Additional provisions recognised 29 86

Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits (104) (76)

Carrying amount at end of period 207 282

Note 29. Other Liabilities

2013 2012

$000 $000

Current 

Refundable deposits and bonds 8,223 7,678 

Leases in advance 100 100 

Deferred Income 627 658 

Unclaimed money 100 100 

General Provisions 85 201 

Total current 9,135 8,737

Non-current 

Leases in advance 833 933

Total non-current 833 933
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2013 2012

$000 $000

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities:

Current Payables (a) (965) 2,187 

Current Provisions 389 111 

Other liabilities 398 (531) 

Non-current provisions 11 56 

Non-current liabilities (100) (100) 

Net GST receipts / (payments) (b) - -

Change in GST receivables / payables (c) (201) (69)

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (603) 1,693

 (a)  Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable / payable in respect of GST and the 

receivable / payable in respect of the sale / purchase of non-current assets are not included in these 

items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.

 (b) This is the net GST paid / received, i.e. cash transactions

 (c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables

Note 31. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2013 2012

$000 $000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,460 5,781

Other financial assets (current & non-current) 18,000 16,000

19,460 21,781

Reconciliation of profit after income tax equivalent to net cash flows provided  
by/(used in) operating activities

2013 2012

$000 $000

Profit / (loss) for the period 815 (1,060)

Non cash items

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,264 4,728

Net loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 106 86

Doubtful debts expense 30 20

Grants and subsidies from State Government (4,821) (3,437)

(Increase) / decrease in assets: 

Current receivables (a) (576) (283)

Current inventories 47 (15)
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Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 2013 2012

$000 $000

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the 
balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities are 
payable as follows:

Within 1 year 377 341

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 853 1,143

Later than 5 years 1 - 

1,230 1,483

Office accommodation is rented under commercial leases and rent is payable monthly 
in advance. The leases run for six years, with options of a further five years. The rentals 
are subject to review on predetermined dates based on either fixed percentage, CPI or 
market review adjustments.

Office equipment is leased over four year terms with charges payable monthly in 
advance. Options exist to continue leasing beyond the expiry date or to purchase at 
residual value.

Note 32. Commitments

The commitments below are exclusive of GST where relevant.

Capital expenditure commitments 2013 2012

$000 $000

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital 
expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the 
financial statements, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 3,240 1,498

3,240 1,498

The capital commitments include amounts for:

Buildings 520 28

Infrastructure 1,854 1,250

Plant Equipment and Vehicles 311 99

Software Development - 121

Computers and Electronic Equipment 539

16

3,240 1,498

Other expenditure commitments 2013 2012

$000 $000

Other expenditure commitments of $313,000 contracted 
for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as 
liabilities, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 1,338 302

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 42

1,338 344
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Note 33. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilitaies

The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the  
financial statements:

Treatment of Contaminated Sites

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and 
suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC). In 
accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, 
the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated – 
remediation required or possibly contaminated – investigation required, the Authority may 
have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.

During the 2012-2013 financial year the Authority managed two suspected contaminated sites 
that had been reported to DER in the previous financial year. DER advised that the Geordie 
Bay site was not contaminated and no further investigations were required. The Tank 8 
Powerstation site has been classified as 'possibly contaminated - investigation required'. The 
Authority has applied for funding from the Contaminated Sites Management Account (CSMA) 
to undertake further investigative work at Tank 8. Until the nature and extent of contamination 
is identified, it is not practicable to estimate the potential financial effect of addressing 
remediation costs or ongoing monitoring that may be required.

The Authority continues to invest in monitoring activities of other contaminated sites including 
Thomsons Bay and the Landfill.

Note 32. Commitments contd.

Finance Lease commitments 2013 2012

$000 $000

Minimum lease payment commitments in relation to finance 
leases are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 158 174

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 143 301

Minimum finance lease payments 301 476

Less future finance charges (17) (39)

present value of finance lease liabilities 284 437

Within 1 year 146 192

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 138 245

present value of finance lease liabilities 284 437

Included in the financial statements as:

Current (note 27 ‘Borrowings’) 146 192

Non-current (note 27 ‘Borrowings’) 138 245

284 437

The Authority has the option to purchase leased assets at their agreed fair value on expiry 
of the lease. These leasing arrangements do not have escalation clauses, other than in the 
event of payment default. There are no restrictions imposed by these leasing arrangements 
on other financing transactions. Certain finance leases have a contingent rental obligation; 
however these are not material when compared to the total lease payments made.
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Loss on disposal of non-current assets The variance relates to the demolition of four 

buildings on the island.

Other expenses

The variance is primarily related to the movement of Payroll tax from Supplies and 

Services to Other Expenses.

  2013 
Estimate

2013 
Actual variance variance

$000 $000 $000  %

Other Revenues 304 622 (318) (51)

Grants and subsidies from State 
Government 4,745 3,469 1,276 37

Depreciation and amortisation 4,264 4,728 (464) (10)

Other Expenses 885 403 482 120

Other revenues

The 2012 other revenue included grant receipts (from non-Government sources) which 
did not occur in the 2013 year. 

Grants and subsidies from State Government

The State Government operating grant to the Authority was increased by $1m in 2013 and 
an additional amount was received in relation to the Marina Feasibility Study.

Depreciation and Amortisation

The variance is due to the revaluation of infrastructure in 2012 which decreased the 
carrying amount of the infrastructure by $2,8m, decreasing the depreciation charge  
for 2013.

Other Expenses

The variance is primarily related to the movement of Payroll tax from Supplier and 
Services to Other Expenses.

Note 34. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

There are no events that occurred after Statement of Financial Position date which would 
materially affect the financial statements.

Note 35. Explanatory statement

Details and reasons for significant variations between estimates and actual results for 
2013 and between the actual results for 2012 and 2013 are shown below. Significant 
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $100,000.

Significant variances between estimates and actual for 2013

  2013 
Estimate

2013 
Actual variance variance

$000 $000 $000  %

Sales 171 297 (126) (42)

Interest Revenue 900 1,051 (151) (14

Depreciation and amortisation 4,986 4,264 722 17

Loss on disposal of  
non-current assets - 106 (106) (100)

Other expenses 719 885 (166) (19)

Sales

The 2013 actual sales incorporates revenue from Island Activities that the Authority 

now provides directly rather than via third party business leases.

Interest Revenue

The variance is due to cash balances being invested at higher interest rates than 

budgeted.

Depreciation and amortisation

The depreciation variance is due to asset additions occuring later in the year than 

estimated.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates 
and interest rates will affect the Authority’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. The Authority does not trade in foreign currency and is not 
materially exposed to other price risks. 

The Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk on financial liabilities as all 
borrowings are finance leases at fixed interest rates. The table at note 36(c) details 
the interest rate sensitivity on cash and cash equivalents, all of which is invested in 
interest bearing accounts.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

In addition to cash and cash equivalents, the carrying amounts of each of the 
following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are:

2013 2012

$000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,460 5,781

Receivables (a) 1,686 1,139

Term deposits 18,000 16,000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost 4,631 5,533

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)

Note 36. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

 Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, restricted 
cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, finance leases, Treasurer’s advances, loans 
and receivables and payables. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks. 
The Authority’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks 
identified below.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables 
defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Authority. 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period in relation to 
each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those 
assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment as shown in the table at note 36(c) 
‘Financial Instrument Disclosures’ and note 2(n) ‘Receivables’.

 The Authority has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services 
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable 
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority’s 
exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no 
significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations 
as  they fall due. The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the 
normal course of business.

 The Authority’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, loans and finance leases. The Authority 
has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cash flows 
to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
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Note 36. Financial Instruments contd.

(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures

Credit Risk 

The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Authority’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing analysis of financial assets 
that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority.

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

Aged analysis of financial assets

past due but not impaired

 
Carrying 
Amount

Not past 
due and not 

impaired
up to 1 
month 1 - 3 months

3 months to  
1 year

1 - 5  
years

More than 
5 years

Impaired 
financial 
assets

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2013

Cash and cash equivalents 1,460 1,460 - - - - - -

Receivables (a) 1,686 1,451 121 114 - - -

Other financial assets 18,000 18,000 - - - - - -

21,146 20,911 121 114 - - -

2012

Cash and cash equivalents 5,781 5,781 - - - - - -

Receivables (a) 1,139 - 969 170 - - - -

Other financial assets 16,000 16,000 - - - - - -

22,920 21,781 969 170 - - - -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Note 36. Financial Instruments contd.

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

The following table details the Authority’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section 
includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

variable 
Interest 

rate

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

Adjustment 
for 

discounting
Nominal 
amount

up to 1 
month

1 – 3 
months

3 months 
to 1 year 1 - 5 years

More than 
5 years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2013

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2.75 1,460 - 1,049 411 - - - - -

Receivables (a) 1,686 - - 1,686 - - - - -

Other financial assets 4.23 18,000 18,000 - - 5,000 2,500 6,500 4,000 -

21,146 18,000 1,049 2,097 5,000 2,500 6,500 4,000 -

Financial Liabilities

Payables 4,347 - - 4,347 - - - - -

Finance lease liabilities 5.75 284 284 - - - - 146 138 -

4,631 284 - 4,347 - - 146 138 -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Note 36. Financial Instruments contd.

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
interest 

rate

variable 
Interest 

rate

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

Adjustment 
for 

discounting
Nominal 
amount

up to 1 
month

1 – 3 
months

3 months 
to 1 year 1 - 5 years

More than 
5 years

% $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2012

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4.5 5,781 - 5,229 552 - - - - -

Receivables (a) 1,139 - - 1,139 - - - - -

Other financial assets 5.33 16,000 16,000 - - - 1,500 12,000 2,500 -

22,920 16,000 5,229 1,691 - 1,500 12,000 2,500 -

Financial Liabilities

Payables 5,096 - - 5,096 - - - - -

Finance lease liabilities 5.75 437 437 - - - - 153 284 -

5,533 437 - 5,096 - - 153 284 -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)



Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013        83

notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Note 37. Remuneration of members of the 
accountable authority and senior officers

2013 2012

Remuneration of Members of the accountable authority

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose 
total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary benefits 
and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the 
following bands are: 

$

0-10,000 1 -

10,001 – 20,000 5 5

20,001 - 30,000 1 1

$000 $000

Base remuneration and superannuation 108 93

Annual leave and long service leave accruals - -

Other benefits - -

The total remuneration of members of the  
Accountable Authority 108 93

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in 
respect of members of the Accountable Authority. 

No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.

Note 36. Financial Instruments contd.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

- 100 basis points +100 basis points

 
Carrying 
Amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity

2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 (10) (10) 10 10

Term deposits 18,000 (180) (180) 180 180

Total Increase/(Decrease) (190) (190) 190 190

- 100 basis points +100 basis points

 
Carrying 
Amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity

2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5,229 (52) (52) 52 52

Term deposits 16,000 (160) (160) 160 160

Total Increase/(Decrease) (212) (212) 212 212

Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, 
whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a 
reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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Note 38. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect 
of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

2013 2012

$000 $000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and  
performance indicators 95 91

The amounts disclosed above differ from the amounts recognised in note 16 ‘Other expenses’ 
and represent current and final audit fees for the current year financial statement.

Note 39. Supplementary financial information

(a) Write-offs approved by the Board

2013 2012

$000 $000

Amounts already provided for and written off as 
uncollectible 41 869

41 869

(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes

2013 2012

$000 $000

Net cash shortage - 2

- 2

Note 37. Remuneration of members of the 
accountable authority and senior officers contd.

Remuneration of Senior Officers

The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the 
accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands are:

2013 2012

 $

30,001 – 40,000 3 1

40,001 – 50,000 - -

80,001 – 90,000 - -

90,001 – 100,000 - 1

100,001 – 110,000 - -

110,001 – 120,000 - -

120,001 – 130,000 2 1

130,001 – 140,000 - 1

140,001 – 150,000 - 1

150,001 – 160,000 2 2

160,001 – 170,000 1 1

240,001 – 250,000 - 1

250,001 – 260,000 1 -

$000 $000

Base remuneration and superannuation 1,013 1,168

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 29 69

Other benefits 35 29

The total remuneration of senior officers 1,077 1,265

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority 
in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the 
accountable authority.

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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Services to 
visitors

Conservation of 
Environment Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

ExpENSES

Cost of sales 88 149 1 - 89 149

Employee benefits expense 8,784 8,378 2,183 2,182 10,967 10,560

Supplies and services 17,360 16,235 753 1,667 18,113 17,902

Depreciation and 
amortisation expense 4,107 4,391 157 336 4,264 4,727

Finance costs 244 218 19 30 263 248

Accommodation expenses 363 348 34 46 397 394

Loss on disposal of  
non-current assets 97 75 9 10 106 85

Other expenses 719 798 166 198 885 996

Total Expenses 31,762 30,592 3,322 4,469 35,084 35,061

Profit/(loss) before grants 
and subsidies from  
State Government (818) (227) (3,197) (4,395) (4,015) (4,622)

Grants and subsidies from 
State Government 2,732 2,447 2,013 1,021 4,745 3,468

Services received free 
 of charge 78 83 7 11 85 94

Profit / (loss) for the period 1,992 2,303 (1,177) (3,363) 815 (1,060)

Services to 
visitors

Conservation of 
Environment Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

INCOME

Revenue

Sales 293 255 4 2 297 257 

Provision of services 29,375 28,487 41 1 29,416 28,488
Commonwealth grants and 
contributions 2 - - 6 2 6 

Interest revenue 1,050 1,066 - - 1,050 1,066

Other revenues 224 557 80 65 304 622 

Gains
Gains on disposal of  
non-current assets - - - - - - 

Total Income 30,944 30,365 125 74 31,069 30,439

Note 40. Schedule of income and expenses by service
Segment information has been disclosed by service. The two services of the Authority are:

Service 1: provision of Services to visitors

This service relates to the provision and operation of affordable recreational and holiday facilities with particular regard for the needs of persons usually resident in the State, and who 
wish to visit or stay on the Island as a family group.

Service 2: Conservation of the Natural and Built Environment

This service relates to the maintenance and protection of the Island’s natural and built environment.

The Authority operates within one geographical segment (the Western Australian public sector).
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We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users 

to assess the Rottnest Island Authority’s performance and fairly represent the performance of the Rottnest Island Authority for the 

financial year ended 30 June 2013.

John Driscoll

CHAIRMAN

19 September 2013

Robert McDonald

CHAIRMAN 

Finance & Audit Committee

19 September 2013

Othmar Beerli

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

19 September 2013
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Rottnest Island visitors enjoy recreational and holiday experiences in healthy natural 

and cultural environments.

The RIA’s key performance indicators (KPIs) provide a guide to its performance 

regarding its stated outcome. State public sector policy requires effectiveness and 

efficiency indicators to demonstrate this performance. By their nature, these indicators 

are very high level and attempt to encompass all the RIA’s operations and costs. For 

example, the efficiency indicators are required to include all relevant costs, including 

corporate overheads, for the two services respectively.  

The relationship between the RIA’s KPIs and services to Government outcomes is 

outlined in the table below. 

Government Goal: Social and Environmental Responsibility 

Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally 

responsible manner for the long-term benefit of the State.

Key performance Indicators 
Services provided to 

the Community

Effectiveness

•	 Visitor Satisfaction with the Rottnest Island experience

•	 Health of Island’s natural environment

•	 Health of Island’s cultural heritage 

1. Recreational and 
holiday services

2. Natural 
environment and 
cultural heritage 
management

Efficiency 

•	 Average cost of recreational and holiday services provided 
per visitor

•	 Average cost of natural environment and cultural heritage 
management per Reserve hectare

The RIA regularly reviews and amends its indicators to reflect changes in a variety 

of factors impacting the Island. These could be visitor and community priorities for 

Rottnest Island, or changes in technology that enable more sophisticated measures 

to be implemented. In 2012-13, the RIA amended its suite of indicators concerning the 

natural environment. In particular, new indicators were included to measure the Island’s 

sustainability, which is a key aspect of its corporate objectives. 

The RIA also has a suite of operational and commercial indicators that are used to 

manage and improve its performance.  As well as comparing results to an annual 

target, comparisons to previous year’s results are included where available to enable 

performance trends to be identified. 

Desired outcome
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effectiveness Indicators

1. visitor satisfaction with the Rottnest Island Experience 

An independent research company (Savant Surveys and Strategies) is engaged to 

survey the Island’s visitors. Visitors are selected at random and requested to complete 

questionnaires. There were 1,904 completed questionnaires providing a confidence 

level of 95% with an error rate of +/- 2.3 %. 

This indicator summarises a range of aspects addressed in the survey. Respondents 

are asked to rate Rottnest Island based on their satisfaction or perception of: 

•	 Recreational and holiday services and facilities;

•	 General services and facilities such as public toilets and seating;

•	 Accommodation facilities and services;

•	 Natural environment and cultural heritage; and

•	 Safety and cleanliness of the Island.

•	 Respondents are asked to provide an overall rating of their experience compared 

to expectations of their visit to Rottnest Island. 

visitor Rating
2012-13 
Target 

2012-13 
Result

2011-12  
Result

2010-11 
Result

2009-10 
Result

Met or exceeded expectations 97% 97% 97% 94% 95%

Comments

Rottnest Island continues to provide the vast majority of visitors with an experience 

that meets or exceeds their expectations. 

2. Health of Rottnest Island’s Natural Environment 

This indicator is comprised of a suite of three indicators regarding the management of the 

natural environment, as well as managing the potential impact of risk factors on the Island 

such as utilisation rates of resources, e.g. water. The results are calculated by the RIA’s 

own staff who are qualified in environmental management. These indicators comprise: 

•	 Percentage of conditions compliant with operating licences;

•	 Percentage of EarthCheck Benchmarks equal to or exceeding benchmarks; and 

•	 Average viability rating of focal conservation targets (health of biodiversity).

The first two indicators are being reported for the first time and therefore comparisons 

with previous years’ results are not available. 

2.1 percentage of conditions compliant with operating licences

The RIA is required to comply with many operating licence conditions, mainly in 

regard to natural resources eg water extraction, and the operation of utilities such as 

power, water and gas supply. During 2012-13 there were 135 conditions. This indicator 

measures the percentage of licence conditions that were compliant based on the 

average of two assessments conducted during the year. 

Target Result Comments 

100% 95% A combined total of 15 non-compliances were recorded for 
the two annual assessments. 

The non-compliances concerned the following aspects of Island management; landfill, 

water supply, ministerial water direction 324 and composting toilets.
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2.3  Average viability rating of focal conservation targets  
(health of biodiversity)

This indicator uses a suite of measures for several aspects which are indicative of 

the health of the natural environment of Rottnest Island, such as flora and fauna 

and environmental risk factors. It is based on Environment Australia guidelines 

that describe three types of measures: pressure, condition and management. 

Environmental health standards and actions are contingent to the area being 

monitored. 

This indicator is comprised of measures relating to: 

•	 Woodland Vegetation 

•	 Tadpoles in freshwater lakes

•	 Health of salt lakes 

•	 Groundwater salinity 

•	 Quokka health 

The rating scales of very good, good, fair or poor are based on a quantitative 

assessment for each aspect. However, the quantitative measure for each aspect is 

different. The ratings for each aspect are then averaged to arrive at an overall rating. 

The results for the year are provided in the table below: 

2012-13 
Target 

2012-13 
Result

Comments 

Rating Good Rating Good The overall target was successfully met, and within acceptable 
range of variation. However, some management intervention 
is required for maintenance of the various aspects.

2.2  percentage of EarthCheck Benchmarks equal to or  
exceeding benchmarks 

The RIA is registered under the EarthCheck Sustainability program, a worldwide 

recognised and independent sustainability accreditation program for the tourism  

and hospitality industry. 

The RIA currently has accreditation to the Bronze level and is progressing towards the 

Silver level, and ultimately the Gold level. This indicator measures the percentage of 

EarthCheck benchmarks that were met or exceeded. The benchmarks are approved 

by EarthCheck’s governing body (EC3 Global) and are based on industry sector and/or 

regional benchmarks relevant to the organisation being assessed. 

There are 42 aspects of the Island’s sustainability management which are measured, 

such as water and energy usage, and waste management. A positive result for each 

aspect is achieved when the measure meets or exceeds the benchmark. The overall 

result for the year is provided in the table below: 

2012-13 
Target 

2012-13 
Result 

Comments 

90% 81% Of the 42 benchmarks, 34 were met or exceeded.  
Several aspects require improvement including potable 
water use, recycled paper products and community

involvement. 

Good performance was achieved in regard to energy 
consumption, waste management, use of cleaning products.
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Comments 

Identification

There are 142 places on the RIA’s Heritage Asset Register, of which 61 are heritage-

listed with the Heritage Council of Western Australia (HCWA), and 14 Aboriginal sites 

registered with the Department of Indigenous Affairs (DIA) under the Aboriginal 

Heritage Act 1972. Performance in this area remains consistent, with 75% of all 142 

heritage places having Statements of Significance.

Collections management has retained a focus of recording heritage collection items 

resulting in a significant number of additional objects and photographs accessioned for 

the year (393). It is estimated that the total number of items is approximately 2400. This 

total is adjusted annually based on the discovery of stored but unrecorded artefacts 

and new acquisitions. 

Protection

The majority of developments that required heritage assessment complied with 

heritage guidelines. Out of a total of 11 proposals affecting heritage places, 9 were 

assessed for their impact on heritage values following heritage legal requirements and 

conservation policies. 

Conservation

The RIA continues to maintain and repair its heritage buildings and structures focusing 

not only on the high use visitor areas but also on more remote but significant military 

buildings.  A total average score for State-registered places (buildings and other) meeting 

condition targets for 2012-13 was 75%, which was within the target range of 70-89%.  

In relation to current ‘conservation plans’, the RIA is not able to allocate the required 

funding to this area of cultural heritage management. There are 61 State-registered 

HCWA ‘places’ and 14 State-registered DIA ‘places’ (total 75). Of these 75 ‘places’, 10 

(13%) have conservation plans ten or less years old. These places are mostly located in 

the Kingstown and Thomson Bay Settlement areas. 

3. Health of Island's cultural heritage

This indicator comprises three aspects which are monitored by selected measures to 

indicate the state of Rottnest Island’s cultural heritage. The results for the measures are 

reported as a percentage of the ‘ideal state’. The measures are calculated by RIA staff 

who are qualified in cultural heritage management. The results for the measures of 

Rottnest Island’s cultural heritage are listed below: 

Aspect Measure 

2012-13 
Target

%

2012-13 
Result

%

2011-12 
Result

%

2010-11 
Result

%

2009-10

Results  
%

Identification

The proportion of 
heritage listed places 
with statements of 
significance

70-89 75 75 72 72

The proportion of 
collection heritage items 
recorded on database 
compared to currently 
known number of items

90-100 95 99 80 72

Protection

The proportion of 
developments that 
follow heritage legal 
requirements and 
conservation policies 

90-100 82 83 82 89

Conservation

The proportion of 
State-registered places 
meeting condition targets

70-89 75 73 67 66

The proportion of State-
registered places with 
conservation plans 10 or 
less years old

<30 13 13 13 45

* The RIA’s targets are approved by its governing body in relation to its functions under the Rottnest Island 

Authority Act 1987, including the conditions imposed on the RIA by the Act. For example, the RIA is only 

required to restore man-made resources to the extent to which its resources allow (s.11(2)(c)).  
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Service One: Recreational and Holiday Services 

This indicator reflects the cost of providing Rottnest Island’s recreational and holiday 

services on a per visitor basis. The term ‘visitors’ is determined from the number of 

people arriving by commercial services only. The indicator is intended to track the level 

of resources used to service Rottnest Island visitors. 

The indicator is calculated by dividing the total annual cost of providing all holiday and 

recreation related services to visitors, by the number of visitors for the year. 

Title 
2012-13* 
Target 

2012-13 
Result 

2011-12 
Result

2010-11 
Result

2009-10 
Result

2008-09 
Result**

Average cost of 
recreational and 
holiday services 
provided per 
visitor

$108 $106 $104 $84 $99 $78

* Target based on the annual budget allocated to this service. 

** Results for this comparative year have been amended in accordance with a correction to the financial 

statements for the year. 

Comments: 

The result was almost on par with the expected target. 

Service Two: Natural Environment and Cultural Heritage Management 

This indicator concerns the cost of managing Rottnest Island’s natural environment and 

cultural heritage. Its purpose is to track the level of resources applied to these functions. 

The indicator is calculated by dividing the total cost of managing the natural 

environment and cultural heritage by the Rottnest Island Reserve’s total area of 5,669 

hectares. The Reserve refers to the land and waters defined in Part 1 of the Rottnest 

Island Authority Act 1987.

Title 
2012-13* 
Target 

2012-13 
Result 

2011-12 
Result

2010-11 
Result

2009-10 
Result

2008-09 
Result**

Average cost 
of natural 
environment and 
cultural heritage 
management per 
Reserve hectare

$603 $580  $790 $792 $613 $707

* Target based on the annual budget allocated to this service. 

** Results for this comparative year have been amended in accordance with a correction to the financial 

statements for the year. 

Comments: 

The target for FY 2012-2013 was reduced to reflect reductions in expenditure 

concerning this service. This was required to meet corporate financial constraints.

efficiency Indicators
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pricing policies 

The Rottnest Island Authority Act 

1987 requires that overall revenue 

is adequate to meet the Authority’s 

expenditure. Therefore, the Act allows 

the Authority to have a pricing policy 

whereby commercial services are priced 

to recover the cost of its commercial 

and non-commercial operations such 

as environmental and cultural heritage 

management.  Prices are set to achieve 

these objectives, and are regularly 

reviewed and take into account market 

sensitivities and competitiveness. 

The prevailing fees and charges 

are either ‘unregulated’, such as 

accommodation and recreational 

services, and only require Authority 

approval, or ‘regulated’ such as 

admission and mooring fees which are 

proposed by the Authority for approval 

by Government. 

Several fees and charges were increased 

in 2012-13, mostly in line with the 

Consumer Price Index, consistent with 

the Authority’s strategic objectives. 

Capital Investment 

The Authority invested $6.8 million 

in works projects in the 2012-13 year. 

Investments include:

•	 Upgrades to the Waste Water 

Treatment Plant

•	 Remodelling of the tennis courts at 

Geordie Bay and Kingstown

•	 Provision of digital televisions to all 

accommodation units

•	 Henrietta Rocks access remodelling 

to prevent further erosion and 

deterioration to environment

•	 Upgrade to Cabins at Caroline 

Thomson

•	 Replacement barbecues in rental 

accommodation at North Thomson 

and Governors Circle

•	 Fit out of the Geordie Bay café

•	 Replacement of Heritage 

accommodation furniture, fixtures 

and fittings

•	 Installation of a microwave link 

from the mainland to the Island for 

improved data communication for 

visitors

•	 Replacement of the fuel dispenser 

on the Jetty for marine users

•	 Replacement of a generator and 

alternator at the power station

•	 Upgrade and new saline bores to 

facilitate an increase in capacity at 

the Desalination Plant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

•	 Upgrade of bore pumps and related 

infrastructure

•	 Upgrades to the Desalination Plant

•	 Replacement of sewer pumps across 

the Island

•	 Provision of WiFi to the Mall and 

surrounds

•	 Major upgrade to the Rottnest Island 

golf course including new greens 

and reticulation

•	 Upgrade of historic guns at Oliver 

Hill and to the Bickley Battery 

military heritage



94          Rottnest Island Authority | Annual Report 2012 –2013

OTHER FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

The complex nature of the RIA’s business is reflected in a wide variety of 

occupational groups within the organisation which range from customer service and 

sales representatives to coach captains, environmental scientists and educators, 

professionals and administrators. In addition, trainees are sponsored to support 

indigenous youth development. The seasonal nature of the business is an additional 

challenge for the RIA as it strives to match its workforce to meet visitor demands.

The RIA employed an average of 135 staff in 2012-13 totalling 110 full time equivalents 

(FTE) over the year. The high head count to FTE ratio reflects the RIA’s continuing 

commitment to more flexible work practices incorporating part time staff and use of 

different staffing arrangements to meet seasonal demands for the RIA’s visitor services 

and education programs.

Employee profile

year ending
June 
2013

June 
2012

Permanent 74 83

Fixed Term 40 42

Casual 19 14

Total Headcount 133 139

Full Time Equivalents 110 110

During 2012-13 recruitment processes resulted in 34 new appointments. 14 permanent 

or fixed-term staff elected to leave the RIA in 2012-13 (representing a 15% staff turnover) 

compared to 22 staff in 2011-12 (17% turnover).

Human Resources

Workforce planning and Staff Development

The RIA has developed a Workforce and Diversity Plan to help identify current and 

future workforce needs over the next three years. The plan incorporates strategies 

that respond to sector-wide workforce issues and is combined with our Equal 

Opportunity Management Plan. Central to this plan are the priorities to attract and 

retain appropriately skilled staff, offer ongoing development opportunities and identify 

emerging leaders for succession planning.

The RIA continued to promote a workplace which encourages staff learning and 

development. Staff received support for attendance at workshops and seminars, study 

assistance for formal studies, professional development assistance, and conference 

attendance.

Cross Cultural Awareness

As part of further achieving and understanding the importance of the Reconciliation 

Action Plan the RIA provides Cross Cultural Awareness Training (CCAT) for our 

employees on an annual basis. In previous years the CCAT was offered primarily to RIA 

staff. In 2012-13 the CCAT was extended to the Rottnest Island Business Community 

members as well as the Rottnest Island Volunteer Guides. A total of 25 people 

attended the training in 2012-13.

Substantive Equality

The RIA is committed to the elimination of systemic discrimination from all its policies, 

practices and services. The Human Resources Officer is now trained in and acts as 

a Contact Officer, to be the first point of contact to deal with complaints related to 

inappropriate and potentially unlawful behaviour.
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Disability Access and Inclusion plan Outcomes 

The RIA continued providing access-friendly services for people with disabilities in line 

with the six outcomes of its Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 2007-2012. 

People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the 

services of and any events organised by the Rottnest Island Authority.

All events and information about Rottnest Island are developed with consideration for 

people with special needs. The RIA continued its commitment to the Companion Card 

program for Island tours, transport and bike hire.

People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the 

buildings and other facilities of the Rottnest Island Authority.

The RIA’s Sustainable Development Guidelines require consideration of disability 

access for all proposals. Access-friendly accommodation is available for those 

requiring this facility as are motorised wheelchairs (gophers), adult 'trikes' and tandem 

bikes and a bus with wheelchair lift / coach with wheelchair hoist.

People with disabilities receive information from the Rottnest Island Authority in a 

format that will enable them to access the information as readily as other people.

The RIA supports the You’re Welcome WA access initiative. People can find information 

about disabled access on Rottnest Island on the RIA’s website at www.rottnestisland.

com. Alternative format information is provided via virtual tours of accommodation units 

and free audio podcasts about the Island and its history. The website complies with the 

State Government Access Guidelines for Information, Services and Facilities.

People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff 

of the Rottnest Island Authority as other people.

Providing a friendly and welcoming service is one of the RIA’s values and operating 

principles. Regular staff training ensures that customers receive the same level and 

quality of service. 

People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make 

complaints to the Rottnest Island Authority.

The RIA actively encourages people to provide feedback and offers a variety of means 

for this: telephone, post, email and fax or by completing the ‘contact us’ form on the 

website. All formal complaints are registered and followed up appropriately in order to 

achieve resolution. 

People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate 

in any public consultation by the Rottnest Island Authority.

Public consultation is advertised in the media and on the RIA’s website. Feedback can 

be provided in electronic or written format.

Compliance with public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes 

The RIA continues to fully comply with all Public Sector Standards.

The RIA focused its attention on continuing to implement a high standard of ethical 

decision making. To achieve this, the RIA has trained managers and supervisors in 

accountability and ethical decision making. Further courses for all staff are planned in 

the next year. An Ethical Decision Making Guide has been drafted and a copy will be 

provided to all staff once it has been approved and finalised. 
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Recordkeeping plan 

The RIA’s Recordkeeping Plan was approved by the State Records Commission in 

December 2005. A review was undertaken and an updated Recordkeeping Plan was 

provided to the State Records Office in June 2011.

Within the RIA, recordkeeping compliance is achieved by:

•	 maintaining the system infrastructure at latest release levels to ensure 

equivalence with require standards

•	 regularly auditing the use of the TRIM Context recordkeeping system to ensure its 

effectiveness and efficiency in meeting compliance and operational requirements

•	 ensuring the Authority Induction Programme provides new employees with 

information regarding their recordkeeping roles and responsibilities

•	 ensuring all new staff successfully complete an online Recordkeeping Awareness 

course

•	 providing all relevant employees with TRIM Records Management training;

•	 regularly providing employees with information on contemporary recordkeeping 

practices

•	 providing ongoing assistance to TRIM users. 

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management 

In accordance with the Occupational Safety and Heath Act 1984, the Authority and its 

Executive continues to be committed to providing and maintaining a safe and healthy 

environment for its visitors, staff, volunteers and contractors where the risk of harm is 

as low as reasonably possible.

The Occupational Safety and Health Committee, including the employee representatives, 

form the key to occupational safety and health consultation within (the agency). The 

members are accessible and effectively utilised by both management and employees in 

the discussion and resolution of occupational safety and health issues. 

This commitment is evident in that the Authority has recently reviewed its Occupational 

Safety and Health (OSH) Policy to ensure that it meets the legislative requirements and 

is currently working towards conducting an occupational safety and health management 

system assessment based on the recognised WorkSafe Plan as well as elements of AS/

NZS4801:2001 - Occupational health and safety management systems. 

Injury Management System 

The Authority has an injury management policy, which specifies that it will comply with 

all of the requirements of the Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981 

which includes the development of effective return to work plans.

The Authority is strongly committed to consulting with staff in relation to OSH matters, 

and enabling all staff to contribute to decisions that may affect their safety and health 

at work. The OSH Committee has continued to operate with meetings held monthly 

to discuss and resolve occupational safety and health issues, review hazard and 

incident reports, and review progress against the Occupational Safety and Health 

Action Plan. There are eight trained OSH representatives who play an important part 

in the investigation of hazards and reporting of incidents to the Committee. Regular 

workplace inspections are conducted by the representatives.

The Authority’s continued drive to maintain a safe and healthy environment is reflected 

in the annual figures for 2012/13 where it was able to meet four out of the five targets set 

out by the Public Sector Commissioner's Circular: 2012-05 Code of Practice Occupational 

Safety and Health in the WA Public Sector. These are outlined below.

There was no claim/injury that resulted in lost time for the year and this is a testament 

to the dedication to health and safety being spread throughout the Authority as well as 

a reflection of the improvement in the overall safety, health and injury management at 

the Authority in tandem with stringent policy, procedures and reporting practices.
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 Indicator Target 2012-2013 Results

Number of fatalities Zero Achieved – Zero

Lost time injury/disease (LTI/D) 
incidence rate

Zero or 10% 
improvement on the 
previous three (3) 
years. 

Achieved – 0 (1.8% in 
2011-12)

Lost time injury severity rate Zero or 10% 
improvement on the 
previous three (3) 
years.

Achieved – Zero

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work within (i) 13 weeks 
and (ii) 26 weeks

Greater than or equal 
to 80% return to work 
within 26 weeks

Achieved – 100%

Percentage of managers and 
supervisors trained in occupational 
safety, health and injury management 
responsibilities

Greater than or equal 
to 80%

Not Achieved – 50% 
of managers have 
undertaken training

Advertising

Advertising Agencies Nil

Market Research $ 49,295
Savant Surveys & Strategies $31,227

TNS – Boating Survey $18,068

Polling Nil Nil

Direct Mail Nil Nil

Media Advertising $129,901

Optimum Media Decisions $80,051

Adcorp $22,120

Detail Marketing $27,730

Social Media $ 13,255 Creative Art House $13,255

Design $ 38,490 Identity Creative $38,490

Financial Estimates 2013-14 

As required under Treasurer’s Instruction 953 the annual financial estimates for the 

Rottnest Island Authority for the 2013-14 financial year are provided in the following table:

Rottnest Island Authority Operating Budget 2013 – 2014

$000 s

Income

Revenue

Sales –

Provision of service 30,845

Commonwealth grants and contributions –

Interest revenue 900

Other revenue 144

Gains

Gains on disposal of non-current assets –

Total Income 31,889

Expenses

Cost of sales 84

Employee benefits expense 11,539

Supplies and services 20,428

Depreciation and amortisation 4,781

Finance costs 240

Accomodation 425

Loss on disposal of non-current assets –

Other expenses 487

Total Expenses 37,985

Loss before grants and subsidies from State Government (6,096)

Grants and Subsidies from State Government 6,325

Services received free of charge –

Profit/(Loss) for the period 229
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